
 

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

January 27, 2016 
12:00pm 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

a. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance (Please Stand) 
 

b. Reading of the “Promise of Community Action” (Please Stand) 
 

Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of 
hope, improves communities, and makes America a better place to 
live.  We care about the entire community, and we are dedicated to 
helping people help themselves and each other. 

 
c. Seating and Welcoming of New Board Member – Action Item (p. 1) 
 

Resolution and Accepting Appointment of new Board Member, Jairon Castillo, as the 
Head Start Policy Council Representative  

 
d. Roll Call 

 
James Camp Curtis Floyd   Garth Corrigan Fred Plane 
Don Bynum Jairon Castillo  Jose Gonzalez Craig Henderson   
Mike Maggard Tony Martinez  Yolanda Ochoa Warren Peterson  
Kathy Philley Charlie Rodriguez Ana Vigil   

   
II. Approval of Agenda 

 
III. Approval of meeting minutes 

 
a. Minutes of November 24, 2015 Board of Directors meeting – Action Item (p. 2-7)   

 
IV. Introduction of Guests/Public Forum: (The public may address the Board of Directors on 

items not on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person 
wishes to address the same topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  
Please state your name before making your presentation.) 

 
V. Special Presentations 

 
VI. New Business 

 
a. Election of Board Officers – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item 

(Verbal Report) 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 27, 2016 
Page 2 
 

b. Recommendation of Award for Independent Audit Services for the Period March 1, 
205 to February 28, 2018 – Margaret Palmer, Business Manager – Action Item     
(p. 8-12)  
 

c. Board Resolution Approving Jeremy Tobias and Yolanda Gonzales as authorized 
Signers for State Licensing Applications – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start 
/ State Child Development – Action Item (p. 13) 

 
d. Food Bank Solar Project Update – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 

Development – Info Item (p. 14) 
 

VII. Committee Reports 
 

a. Executive Committee Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item 
i. Minutes of December 9, 2015 meeting (p. 15-21) 
ii. Plaque Presentation to outgoing Board Member Felicia Leland 
iii. Check Presentation from TETER for the Food Bank 
iv. Request for Waiver of Non-Federal Share and Administrative Cost 

Limitations for San Joaquin County Early Head Start (p. 22) 
v. Request to Carry-Over Unexpended San Joaquin County Early Head 

Start Funding to the 2016-2017 Budget Period (p. 23) 
vi. San Joaquin County Early Head Start Food Service Vendor Contract for 

Contract Year 2016-2017 (p. 24-51) 
vii. Funding Request to United Way of Kern County Community Investment 

Grant for the Food Bank (p. 52) 
viii. Funding Request to USDA for the Food Bank (p. 53) 
ix. Reorganization of Divisions and Job Functions (p. 54-57) 
x. Award of Loan Agreement for Refinancing of the Pete Parra/Campus 

Project $2.3 Million Dollars (p. 58-66) 
xi. Application Status Report (p. 67-69) 
xii. Head Start / State Child Development November Enrollment Update     

(p. 70-71) 
xiii. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ending 

November 30, 2015 (p. 72-80) 
xiv. Discretionary/Fund Raising Funds Analysis, November 2015 (p. 81) 
xv. Abbreviated Financial Report (Section 3 of binder) 

 
b. Audit & Pension Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance –    

Action Item 
Meeting of December 14, 2015 

i. Minutes of December 14, 2015 meeting (p. 82-85) 
ii. Presentation of the Independent Audit Reports for year ending     

February 28, 2015 
iii. Pension Report by Mutual of America 
iv. Update on RFP Audit Procurement Process 
v. Annual Administrative Review from California Department of Education 

for the Summer Food Program (p. 86) 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 27, 2016 
Page 3 
 

vi. Response and Corrective Action to the Department of Community 
Services and Development for 2013 Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG) and 2013 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program        
(p. 87-102) 

vii. Close-Out Report from the Department of Community Services and 
Development for 2014 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program 
(LIHEAP) (Contract No. 14B-5012) (p. 103-107) 

viii. Close-Out Report from the Department of Community Services and 
Development for 2014 DOE Weatherization Assistance Program 
(Contract No. 14C-1812) (p. 108-110) 

 
Meeting of January 14, 2016 

i. Minutes of January 14, 2016 meeting (p. 111-113) 
ii. Audit Transmittal Report (TR) 15-003 (FYE 2-28-15) from the Department 

of Community Services and Development (p. 114-116) 
 

c. Program, Review & Evaluation Committee Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Community Development - Action Item  

i. Minutes of January 13, 2016 meeting (p. 117-120) 
ii. Program Reports 

1. Application Status Report (p. 121-123) 
2. CEDS Enrollment (p. 124-125) 
3. CEDS Disability Report (p. 124-125) 
4. CACFP Report (p. 126) 
5. Nov - Dec 2015 Outreach Advocacy Report (p. 127-128) 

 
d. Budget & Finance Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance - Action 

Item  
i. Minutes of January 20, 2016 meeting (p. 129-133) 
ii. Discretionary Fund (p. 134) 
iii. 2016 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG Contract# 16F-5015) 

Budget (p. 135-138) 
iv. Agency Financial Statements, December 2015 (Section 3 of binder) 
v. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report (p. 139-149) 
vi. Funding Requests 

1. United Way of Kern County for the Food Bank (p. 150) 
2. Junior League of Bakersfield for the East Kern Family Resource 

Center (p. 151) 
3. California Department of Public Health for the Friendship House 

and Shafter Youth Center (p. 152) 
4. CalEITC4Me for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) 

program (p. 153) 
 

VIII. Advisory Board Reports 
 

a. Head Start Policy Council Report – Jairon Castillo, Policy Council Representative – 
Action Item (p. 154)  

i. Minutes of December 17, 2015 meeting (p. 155-158) 



Community Action Partnership of Kern 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 
January 27, 2016 
Page 4 
 

 
b. Friendship House Advisory Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 

Development – Action Item  
i. No meeting for November and December  

 
IX. Executive Director Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item                 

(p. 159-160)                 
 

a. CAPK Annual Report 
 

b. Annual Humanitarian Banquet Update 
 
c. Food Bank Membership in Feeding America 
 
d. Food Bank Correspondence and Appeal 
 
e. Miscellaneous Reports and Information Items (p. 161-162) 

 
X. Board Member Comments 

 
XI. Closed Session 

 
a. CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS 

 
Agency designated representatives: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Michele 
Nowell, Director of Human Resources; Che Johnson with Liebert, Cassidy & 
Whitmore. 
 
Employee Organization: SEIU Local 521 representing Head Start Employees. 
 

XII. Close Session Report 
 

XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, February 24, 2016 

12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, CA  93309 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 
This is to certify that this Agenda notice was posted in the lobby of the CAPK Administrative Office at 5005 Business Park North, 
Bakersfield, CA and online at www.capk.org by 12:00pm, January 22, 2016. Amanda Norman, Assistant to the Executive Director 



RESOLUTION # 2016-01 
 

 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the Community Action Partnership  
of Kern approving the appointment for Jairon Castillo as the 

Head Start Policy Council Representative 
 
The Board of Directors of the Community Action Partnership of Kern located at 5005 
Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 93309, met on January 27, 2016, in Bakersfield, 
California at a scheduled Board meeting and resolved as follows:   
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Article I, Section 3 of the By-Laws of the Community 
Action Partnership of Kern, the CAPK Board of Directors adhere to the procedure for 
selecting Directors, and  
 
WHEREAS, one low-income representative shall be a member of the Head Start Policy 
Council (PC), selected by the Head Start Policy Council, and shall serve on the 
Community Action Partnership of Kern Board of Directors as the PC representative for 
one year, and    
 
WHEREAS, in accordance with Article IV, Section 2 of the Policy Council By-Laws of 
the Community Action Partnership of Kern, the Chairperson will be the primary officer to 
serve as a member of the Board, and 
 
WHEREAS, on November 10, 2015, the Policy Council elected Jairon Castillo to serve 
as the Chairperson for 2016, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the CAPK Board of Directors hereby 
recognizes and accepts the appointment of Jairon Castillo as the 2016 Head Start 
Policy Council Representative. 
 
APPROVED, by a majority vote of the Directors of the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern, this 27th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
_________________________________  ____________________ 
James S. Camp, Chair      Date 
CAPK Board of Directors  

1



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

November 24, 2015 
12:00pm 

 
 

I. Call to Order 
 

Jim Camp, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:25pm at the Community Action 
Partnership of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA. 

 
a. Moment of Silence/Pledge of Allegiance (Please Stand) 
b. Reading of the “Promise of Community Action” (Please Stand) 
c. Roll Call 

 
Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Present   Absent: 
James Camp  Garth Corrigan 
Curtis Floyd   Don Bynum  
Fred Plane   Craig Henderson 
Jose Gonzalez  Felicia Leland  
Tony Martinez  Mike Maggard  
Yolanda Ochoa  Kathy Philley 
Warren Peterson  Ana Vigil 
Charlie Rodriguez    

  
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of 
Head Start / State Child Development; Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations; 
Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth and Community Services; Carmen 
Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition Services; Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Planning, Research and Development; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; other 
CAPK staff.  

 
II. Approval of Agenda 

 
Jeremy stated that he would like to add Item VI(c) – Funding Request to the California 
Department of Education for the Migrant Alternative Payment Program (MCAP) and Board 
Resolution which will be presented by Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth and 
Community Services and Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child 
Development.  This item was brought to our attention after the posting of the agenda and 
needs immediate action. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Board of Directors Meeting Agenda for 
November 24, 2015 with the requested amendment.  Carried by unanimous vote.  
(Floyd/Plane) 
 
 
 

2



III. Approval of meeting minutes 
 
a. Minutes of October 28, 2015 Board of Directors meeting – Action Item  

  
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Minutes of October 28, 2015 Board 
of Directors Meeting.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Martinez) 

 
IV. Introduction of Guests/Public Forum: (The public may address the Board of Directors on 

items not on the agenda.  Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person 
wishes to address the same topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  
Please state your name before making your presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the Board. 

 
V. Special Presentations 

 
a. Plaque Presentation to outgoing Board Member Felicia Leland – presented by Jim 

Camp, Board Chair 
 

Jeremy Tobias stated that this was Felicia’s last meeting as the Policy Council 
Representative and she was not able to make it to today’s meeting due to family 
emergency. 

 
VI. New Business 

 
a. Reconsideration of the Refinancing of Current Loan and Interest Rate Swap at the 

Pete Parra Center/Campus Location in the amount of $2.3 Million – Jeremy Tobias, 
Executive Director – Action Item  
 
Jeremy Tobias stated on September 30th the Board of Directors reviewed refinancing 
options regarding the Pete Parra Campus and after examination the Board approved 
to proceed with the “blended and extend” option.  Region IX had previously gave 
approval on this option, but  when Region IX received the documents, they 
encouraged us to not proceed with the blended and extend option.  Region IX asked 
that if there are program savings in this current budget year, then to use those 
savings to terminate  the interest rate swap at the cost of $325,000, and for us to 
proceed with a standard fixed rate loan.  The swap termination option was discussed 
at the September Board meeting and we did not think that program funds would be 
able to be used to pay the breakage fee.  Region IX would like to terminate the swap 
and has pre-approved to use Head Start and Early Head Start funds for the 
breakage fee. Head Start Fiscal staff are confident that sufficient savings  will be 
available.  Also, Jeremy stated that by eliminating the swap it unties us from 
exclusively using Wells Fargo for the loan, and we are able to seek quotes from 
other banks on the loan which they are prepared to do.  Documents have been put 
together to be sent out this afternoon to obtain quotes if the Board approves this 
plan.  He stated staff recommends the Board of Directors reconsider the previous 
action taken and approve the resolution authorizing the refinancing of the Pete 
Parra/Campus project loan in the amount of $2.3 million; authorizing staff to cancel 

3



the existing swap and pay a breakage fee using Head Start and Early Head Start FY 
2015-2016 budget savings; authorize the request for quotes from financial 
institutions for loan financing; appoint a committee to review loan proposals; 
authorize the Executive Committee to approve the final selection of the preferred 
lender; and authorize the Board Chairperson, Executive Director and Finance 
Director to approve and sign all required documents for the purpose of the loan 
refinancing and cancelation of the existing Interest Rate Swap agreement.    
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Reconsideration of the Refinancing 
of Current Loan and Interest Rate Swap at the Pete Parra Center/Campus Location 
in the amount of $2.3 Million as stated in the recommendation. Carried by unanimous 
vote. (Martinez/Ochoa)   
 

b. Approval of Aggregate Purchases Over $200,000 – Margaret Palmer, Business 
Manager – Action Item   

 
Margaret Palmer stated purchasing is done by the different programs and 
departments and which have been receiving general oversite from Operations.  In 
January 2014 a new threshold was approved and many vendor agreements and 
contracts were in place at the time it was approved.  During a review of purchases 
there have been oversights when it comes to identifying “aggregate” purchases over 
$200,000.  Since the internal review, Business Services has modified its processing 
procedures by reviewing the aggregate balances of each purchase request to ensure 
that CAPK is complying with the procurement requirements set out by OMB in 2 CFR 
200, as well as CAPK’s internal approval requirements.  Business Services has 
noted that purchases from several vendors have exceeded the threshold amount 
which requires approval by the Board of Directors.  Margaret stated she is requesting 
approval of the proposed aggregate purchase amounts for nine (9) vendors; 
Benchmark Air Conditioning, Insight Public Sector, Lakeshore Learning, Oasis Air 
Conditioning, SupplyWorks, Sysco Food Service, Michael K. Brown Landscaping 
and Zones, to ensure that CAPK complies with the appropriate procurement 
requirements for the remainder of the fiscal year. 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Aggregate Purchases Over 
$200,000. Carried by unanimous vote. (Martinez/Rodriguez)   

 
c. Funding request to the California Department of Education for the Migrant Alternative 

Payment Program (MCAP) and Board Resolution – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of 
Family, Youth and Community Services; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / 
State Child Development – Action Item 

 
Romala Ramkissoon stated this funding request is to the California Department of 
Education and is a refunding application for grants from July 1, 2016 through June 
30, 2017.  The Migrant Alternative Payment Child Care Program provides services 
through six (6) entry counties; Kern, Kings, Fresno, Madera, Merced, Tulare and 
throughout California.  The funds will be used to continue the State Preschool, 
Migrant Child Care, General Child Care and Migrant Alternative Payment programs 
for a total amount of $10,443,440. 

4



 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding request to the California 
Department of Education for the Migrant Alternative Payment Program (MCAP) and 
Board Resolution. Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Floyd)   

 
VII. Committee Reports 

 
a. Program, Review & Evaluation Committee Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of 

Planning, Research and Development - Action Item  
i. Minutes of November 12, 2015  
ii. Program Reports 

1. Application Status Report  
2. CEDS Enrollment  
3. CEDS Disability Report  
4. CACFP Report  
5. Sept – Oct 2015 Outreach Advocacy Report  

 
Ralph Martinez stated the Program, Review & Evaluation Committee met on 
November 12th.  One application was awarded from the Bank of America for $6,000 
for the Community Resource Fairs and Procurement of Food for the Food Bank and 
there was a decline from the Internal Revenue Service for $98,926 for the VITA 
program.  CEDS reported full enrollment for Kern at 2,541 children, 265 children for 
San Joaquin County.  The Average Daily Attendance was at 85% and over 85,000 
meals were served. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Program, Review & Evaluation 
Committee Report. Carried by unanimous vote. (Martinez/Ochoa)   
 

b. Budget & Finance Committee Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance - Action 
Item  

i. Minutes of November 18, 2015 meeting  
ii. Discretionary Fund   
iii. Organizational Changes to the Energy program  
iv. Agency Financial Statements, September 2015  
v. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report  
vi. Funding Requests 

1. Bank of the West for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) 
program  

2. American Honda Foundation for the Friendship House and Shafter 
Youth Center  

3. SoCal Gas Co for the Food Bank  
4. Dominion Foundation for the Food Bank  

 
Christine Anami stated the Discretionary fund has a balance of $406,200 and there 
were no unusual transactions in the Financial Statements.  Several funding request 
were approved and the Energy program is proposing re-organization and will need 
new positions added as well as revisions to other positions as part of new grant 
funding being received.   

5



 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Budget & Finance Committee 
Report. Carried by unanimous vote. (Plane/Rodriguez)   

 
VIII. Advisory Board Reports 

 
a. Head Start Policy Council Report – Felicia Leland, Policy Council Representative – 

Action Item  
i. Minutes of October 22, 2015 and November 10, 2015 meeting  
 

Yolanda Gonzales gave the report on behalf of Board member Leland and stated the 
Policy Council sat the new Executive team and the committees were selected for 
2016.  She stated Policy Council thanked Felicia Leland and she is excited about the 
new Policy Council for 2016.   
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Head Start Policy Council report.  
Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Martinez) 

 
b. Friendship House Advisory Report – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth 

and Community Services – Action Item  
i. No meeting for October  

 
No report was given. 

 
IX. Executive Director Report – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item                   

 
a. 2016 Board of Directors and Standing Committee Meeting Calendar  

 
Jeremy Tobias stated the 2016 Board and Committee meetings calendar has been 
completed and follows our standard meeting and calendaring procedure with some 
exceptions to scheduling due to conferences and holidays. Approval is 
recommended. 
 

b. Miscellaneous Reports and Information Items 
 

Motion was made and seconded to approve the Executive Director Report.  Carried 
by unanimous vote.  (Rodriguez/Gonzalez) 

 
X. Board Member Comments 

 
Jose Gonzalez thanked the board for welcoming him back. 
 
Yolanda Ochoa thanked Jeremy Tobias for inviting the board to San Joaquin County for our 
tour of the facilities. 
 
Curtis Floyd, Fred Plane and Warren Peterson wished everyone a Happy Thanksgiving. 
 
Tony Martinez thanked staff for putting the trip together to San Joaquin. 

6



 
XI. Closed Session 

 
No items were scheduled. 
 

XII. Close Session Report 
 
No report was given. 
 

XIII. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Board of Directors Meeting 
Wednesday, January 27, 2015 (Tentative, pending approval of 2016 Board & Standing Committee Meeting Calendar) 

12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, CA  93309 
 

XIV. Adjournment 
 

The meeting adjourned at 1:07pm 

7



8



9



10



11



12



RESOLUTION # 2016-02 
 
 

A Resolution of the Board of Directors of the  
Community Action Partnership of Kern Approving Authorized Signatures  

for Child Day Care Licenses for Kern County. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Community Action Partnership of Kern located at 5005 
Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 93309, met on January 27, 2016, in Bakersfield, 
California at a scheduled Board meeting and resolved as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, the Community Action Partnership of Kern (CAPK) is a private, non profit 
corporation established as a result of the Economic Opportunity Act of 1964, and is the 
federally designated community action agency serving the low-income, elderly and 
disadvantaged residents of Kern County, and 
 
WHEREAS, CAPK is charged with the responsibility of continuing the battle to alleviate 
poverty in Kern County by developing and implementing creative and innovative programs, 
and  
 
WHEREAS, CAPK has adopted the philosophical position of “Helping People, Changing 
Lives’ in its quest to assist people in need, and families with minimal or no resources, and 
 
WHEREAS, the CAPK Board of Directors has determined that there is a need to provide 
quality, licensed childcare to the low-income children of Kern County, and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the CAPK Board of Directors hereby authorizes 
Jeremy T. Tobias, Executive Director, or, Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State 
Child Development, to act on behalf of the Board as CAPK’s representative signatory with 
regards to Child Day Care Licenses for Head Start and Early Head Start Centers in Kern 
County.  
 
APPROVED by a majority vote of the Directors of the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern, this 27th day of January, 2016. 
 
 
__________________________                        ____________________ 
James Camp, Chair       Date 
Partnership Board of Directors  

13



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 
To: Board of Directors       
  
 
 
From:  Ralph Martinez, Director Community Development 

Date:  January 27, 2016   

Subject: Agenda Item VI(d):  Food Bank Solar Project Update – Info Item 
 
 
In early 2015 CAPK was notified that the City of Bakersfield and the County of Kern had 
approved Community Development Block Grant funding for the installation of Solar for the Food 
Bank.  Funding from each is in the amount of $132,500.  Total funding of $265,000 would roughly 
reduce the Food Banks utility costs by approximately 50-60%. 
 
In November 2015, CAPK was awarded $100,000 in private funding from the Bakersfield 
Californian Foundation towards the Food Bank Solar project.  There are now available $365,000 
for the project.  
 
Since there is joint funding for the project by two government entities, a plan on how to proceed, 
how regulations and requirements will be met for each government entity must first be agreed 
upon.   
 
In a call to Ryan Bland, City of Bakersfield, Economic Development I was informed that the City 
and County are still negotiating how to proceed.  One of the key items remaining is the issue of 
an environmental assessment for the project.  The City is of the opinion that the project would 
qualify under one of the exemption options and is seeking agreement by the County. 
 
Once there is agreement the two entities will develop a scope of work that will be shared with 
CAPK for review and agreement.  
 
CAPK staff are scheduling an internal meeting to include Jeremy T. Tobias, Executive Director, 
Emilio Wagner, Operations Director, Carmen Segovia, Nutrition Services Director, Glen Ephrom, 
Food Bank Manager, Margaret Palmer, Business Manager, and Patricia Mallard, Grant & 
Research Supervisor to discuss possible procurement options.  
 
The Board will be notified as this process continues.  

14



 
COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MEETING 

5005 Business Park North 
December 9, 2015 

12:00 p.m. 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 
James Camp, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:01pm at the Community Action 
Partnership of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 
 

2. Roll Call 
 
Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Present  Absent 
James Camp  Charlie Rodriguez 
Curtis Floyd 
Fred Plane 
Garth Corrigan 

 
 Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head 

Start / State Child Development; Michele Nowell, Director of Human Resources; Romala 
Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth and Community Services; Christine Anami, Director 
of Finance; Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations; Ralph Martinez, Director of Planning, 
Research and Development; Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition Services; 
other CAPK staff. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the amended Executive Committee meeting 
Agenda for December 9, 2015.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Floyd/Plane) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the committee. 

 
5. Special Presentations 

 
a. Plaque Presentation to outgoing Board Member Felicia Leland – presented by Jim 

Camp, Board Chair 
 
Chairperson Jim Camp presented Felicia with a plaque and thanked her for her services 
and contribution while serving on the board and that she will be missed. 
 

 

15



b. Check Presentation from TETER for the Food Bank – Carmen Segovia, Director of 
Health and Nutrition Services and Glen Ephrom, Food Bank Program Manager 
 
TETER presented a check in the amount of $3,333 for the food bank and Robert from 
TETER, LLP stated that they did a food bank collection in the office and the Bakersfield 
office won the collection contest and he is glad to support such a wonderful organization. 
 

6. New Business 
 
a. Request for Waiver of Non-Federal Share and Administrative Cost Limitations for San 

Joaquin County Early Head Start – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State 
Child Development – Action Item  
 
Yolanda Gonzales stated this is the first year implementing the San Joaquin County 
Early Head Start (EHS) program.  A lot of work is going in to getting the centers up and 
running and licensed, and with the initial funding award, a partial waiver was  expected 
for the non-federal share. This is typical of new contract start-ups, and staff at Region IX 
expected this to come up. She stated they are requesting approval for staff to request a 
non-federal share waiver from Region IX for the remaining non-federal share in the 
amount of $727,693.00.  She stated with the initial implementation of the contract and 
filling slots, the Administrative cost items are seeing most of the impact. They have gone 
over 15% administrative cost, which is the limit of total administrative expenditures.  
They are asking for approval to submit a request for a waiver for the administrative cost 
limitation for the budget period.   
 
Jim Camp asked if the program anticipates the administrative cost to go down and 
Yolanda stated they do anticipate the cost to go down as they open centers and get into 
a normal operating procedure. They do not anticipate going over the 15% next year and 
will monitor it very closely.  
 
Curtis Floyd asked when did they realized they will be over the 15% of administrative 
costs and Yolanda stated that the program specialist at Region IX told them the 
administrative costs will go over in the beginning of the implementation of the program. 
 
Cutis stated in the future, to let the Board know right away if the program goes over the 
15% or is anticipated to go over.  
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Request for Waiver of Non-Federal 
Share and Administrative Cost Limitations for San Joaquin County Early Head Start.  
Carried by unanimous vote.  (Floyd/Corrigan) 
 

b. Request to Carry-Over Unexpended San Joaquin County Early Head Start Funding to 
the 2016-2017 Budget Period – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child 
Development – Action Item  
 
Yolanda Gonzales stated that during the process of startup they realized and were 
informed by the program specialist at Region IX that it was expected that they were 

16



going to have some carry-over funds.  Staff will be requesting to Region IX to carry-over 
approximately $426,000 to the 2016-2017 program year.  The funds will be used for 
facility repairs, health and safety issues, designing outdoor environments, and to furnish 
facilities when leases are secured for future child care facilities. 
 
Curtis Floyd asked why there are extra funds for San Joaquin County facilities but for 
administrative costs they are over and wanted to know if there was a correlation. 
Yolanda stated that this is typical when implementing a new program as there is a lot of 
administrative work which needs to be done to hire staff among other things and the 
savings are due to not having full year centers open.  She stated there would be no 
funds to carry-over had they had a full year in San Joaquin County. 

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Request to Carry-Over Unexpended 
San Joaquin County Early Head Start Funding to the 2016-2017 Budget Period.  Carried 
by unanimous vote.  (Plane/Floyd) 
 

c. San Joaquin County Early Head Start Food Service Vendor Contract for Contract Year 
2016-2017 – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child Development – 
Action Item  
 
Yolanda Gonzales stated as two sites were opened two months ago, meals are being 
provided by Creative Child Care, Incorporated located in San Joaquin County.  As more 
sites open, the amount of meals served will increase which will cause the amount to 
exceed the threshold of $200,000.  The projected dollar amount for the San Joaquin 
County Food Vendor IS $272,400. 
 
Jim Camp asked if this was in the budget and Yolanda stated it is in the budget.  
 
Curtis Floyd asked if anyone has reviewed the contract and Yolanda stated that 
procurement has and met all requirement of the agencies policies.   
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the San Joaquin County Early Head Start 
Food Service Vendor Contract for Contract Year 2016-2017.  Carried by unanimous 
vote.  (Floyd/Plane) 
 

d. Funding Request to United Way of Kern County Community Investment Grant for the 
Food Bank – Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition Services – Action Item  
 
Glen Ephrom presented on behalf of Carmen Segovia and stated this request is to the 
United Way of Kern County community investment grant with a requested amount of 
$25,000.  The funds will be used to help with general operating expenses including food 
acquisition, vehicle fuel and maintenance, procurement of food and fresh produce for 
distribution by the Food Bank.  
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to United Way of Kern 
County Community Investment Grant for the Food Bank.  Carried by unanimous vote.  
(Plane/Corrigan) 

17



 
e. Funding Request to the USDA for the Food Bank – Carmen Segovia, Director of Health 

and Nutrition Services – Action Item   
 
Glen Ephrom presented on behalf of Carmen Segovia and stated this request is to the 
USDA for $329,500 for three years.  The funds will be used to purchase a refrigerated 
delivery truck, program supplies, fresh produce, personnel and general operating 
expenses.    
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to the USDA for the 
Food Bank.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Corrigan/Floyd) 
 

f. Reorganization of Divisions and Job Functions – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – 
Action Item  
 
Jeremy Tobias stated this is a minor reorganization as some duties are being shuffled 
among the division directors with the main focus being Romala’s division.  As the Energy 
program has rapidly grown over the last few years, so has the funding levels and 
contract management responsibilities.  2-1-1 has also grown since receiving 
accreditation and this has caused the program to become more complex.  He stated the 
proposal is Romala will administer  Energy, VITA and 2-1-1 and will move to 19th Street 
offices where all three of these programs are housed.  Carmen will now oversee MCAP 
and Ralph will add the oversite  of the Friendship House, the Shafter Youth Center and 
CSBG.   
 
Curtis Floyd asked how time consuming CSBG is and Jeremy stated it is umbrella 
funding and currently Chris oversees the budget and Romala oversees the program 
reporting.  It is not a typical operational program. Chris will continue to oversee the 
budget, and Ralph’s group already assists with  the program reporting, so it will be an 
easy transition for his group. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Reorganization of Divisions and Job 
Functions.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Floyd/Plane) 
 

g. Award of Loan Agreement for Refinancing of the Pete Parra/Campus Project for $2.3 
Million Dollars – Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director – Action Item 
 
Board member Garth Corrigan stated that he must step aside and abstain during this 
item as this is a possible conflict of interest.  Jeremy Tobias stated that Board member 
Corrigan’s employer Valley Republic Bank submitted a proposal for this project and he 
must abstain  from  this item. Board member Corrigan removed himself from the Board 
room for the discussion and vote on this item. 
 
Jeremy stated that Region IX asked that the swap transaction be terminated, as the 
Region no longer supports these type of transactions. Region IX has approved the use 
of current year program savings to pay any swap termination costs, and last month the 
board approved staff to proceed with a market rate, fixed rate loan.  A Request for 

18



Proposal (RFP) was issued for bids which were due on December 7, 2015  and were 
reviewed yesterday by board member Fred Plane, Christine Anami, Finance Director 
and Ralph Martinez, Director of Planning, Research and Development.  After reviewing 
the proposals, the committee narrowed down the options to the top two, which are Wells 
Fargo and Rabobank. The committee is recommending approval of a 10-year loan 
agreement with Rabobank.  The 10 year loan repayment will be $282,353 annually 
compared to a 15-year loan term of $214,186 annually.   
 
Fred Plane stated they looked at the proposals and Valley Republic Bank was not in the 
running as they required all other agency bank accounts to be moved to them and that 
was not a factor.  Rabobank did not require deposits and Wells Fargo came in 4% higher 
than Rabobank. 
 
Jim Camp stated that Rabobank will have to appraise the property and Jeremy stated 
the bank will do an appraisal and he does not anticipate for any problems to occur.   
 
Jim wanted to know what the cost is to break the swap and he said it is currently quoted 
at about $300,000 and budget savings from the current year in head start will be used to 
terminate. Jim asked Yolanda Gonzalez if there will be program savings and she stated 
yes, the program is projecting those savings.  
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Award of Loan Agreement for 
Refinancing of the Pete Parra/Campus Project for $2.3 Million Dollars.  Carried by 
unanimous vote.  (Floyd/Plane) 
 

h. Application Status Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of Planning, Research and 
Development – Info Item  
 
Ralph Martinez stated that there are six pending applications: American Honda 
Foundation for $68,250 for the youth centers, Southern California Gas Co. for $2,000 for 
the Food Bank, Dominion Resources for $2,500 for the Food Bank, Bank of the West for 
$1,500 for VITA, USDA/National Institute of Food and Agriculture (NIFA) for $329,500 
for the Food Bank and United Way of Kern for $25,000 for the Food Bank.  One award 
was received from The Bakersfield Californian Foundation for $100,000 for the Food 
Bank solar project and no declines were received.   
 
Jeremy Tobias updated the Board on the Food Bank Solar project and stated the 
Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding with the City and County will be 
combined into one joint contract covering both grants. The city and county are still 
working on the joint contract, which has not been received by our office yet and he is 
hoping to have it in January.  
 

i. Head Start / State Child Development November Enrollment Update – Jerry Meade, 
Program, Design and Management Administrator – Info Item  
 
Jerry Meade stated Kern County was fully enrolled serving 2,543 children. The 
partnership has 40 children enrolled at Bakersfield College and Blanton has been 

19



waiting to be licensed.   280 children have been enrolled in San Joaquin County and the 
number will increase as it is still in the start-up process.  
 
Jerry stated the Average Daily Attendance (ADA) for November is at 98%.  The five 
centers with the highest ADA percentage is Fairview, San Diego, Voorhies, Primeros 
Pasos, and East California.  The five centers with the lowest is Lost Hills, Franklin, 
Sunrise Villa, Tehachapi and Lamont.    
 

j. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ending November 30, 
2015 – Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager – Info Item   
 
Donna Holland stated the program is closely monitoring expenditures for Kern as to 
ensure there is sufficient savings to cover the fees and costs to terminate the swap 
agreement.  Personnel expenses are less than expected.  The funds that were budgeted 
for the purchase of four program vehicles and on playground/shade structure will be 
deferred until staff are certain that savings are sufficient to cover the cost of the swap 
termination  costs.   
 
Cost pool expenditures are close to budget at this point in the year and staff expects to 
full expend the training & technical funds by the fiscal year-end.  She stated staff were 
not able to complete the report on the non-federal share this month due to unusual 
meeting schedule, but staff expects to exceed the required Non-Federal Share by year-
end.  She stated the Non–Federal and credit card report will be presented at the Budget 
& Finance committee meeting in January 2016.  
 
Donna stated that Early Head Start Partnerships are fully enrolled and an application for 
a facility license was submitted in November.  Services are planned to begin in January 
2016 and start-up funds are in the process of being fully expended.  They have 
experienced higher than normal administrative costs and will not have to request a 
waiver due to administrative cost limitation for the initial project period.  
 
Donna stated San Joaquin County Early Head Start has 279 children enrolled at this 
time.  Two facilities were licensed and began services on November 2nd; California 
Street serves 24 children and Walnut serves 20 children.   Two licensing applications 
have been submitted for Tracy Toddlers and St. Mary’s so services can begin January 
2016.      
 

k. Finance Director Report – Christine Anami, Director of Finance 
 

 Discretionary/ Fund Raising Funds Analysis, November 2015 – Info Item  
 

Christine Anami stated there was slight decrease on the usage due to property taxes 
but other than that there was very little activity.  The net increase to the discretionary 
fund was $68,563. 

 
 
 

20



 Abbreviated Financial Report – Info Item  
 

Christine Anami stated the agency had to borrow $1 million for one day.  She stated 
that on the operating cash summary, she added something new called temporarily 
restricted cash in the amount of $580,415.49 and mainly pertains to the Energy 
program.   

 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Finance Director Report.  Carried by 
unanimous vote.  (Floyd/Corrigan) 

 
7. Committee Member Comments 

 
No comments were made. 
 

8. Closed Session  
 
No items were scheduled. 
 

9. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 
Executive Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, July 13, 2016 
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
10. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 1:17pm 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

21



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

To:  Executive Committee 
   
     
 
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child Development     

Date:  December 9, 2015 

Subject:     Agenda Item 6a: Request for Waiver of Non-Federal Share and Administrative 
Cost Limitations for San Joaquin County Early Head Start – Action Item  

 
 
Non-Federal Share Waiver: 
CAPK is in its first year of implementing the San Joaquin County Early Head Start (EHS) 
program. With the initial funding award for San Joaquin County EHS, a partial waiver was 
received for the non-federal share. The program has experienced delays with opening sites. 
As services have begun later than anticipated, staff will request a non-federal share waiver 
from the Office of Head Start Region IX for the $727,693.00 remaining non-federal share. 
 
The San Joaquin management team has come together to implement new activities which will 
aid in generating and ensuring that non-federal share is met. 
 
Administrative Cost: 
Administrative costs for Early Head Start programs are limited to 15% of total expenditures. 
Higher than normal administrative costs are expected during the implementation phase. 
Administrative costs reported through November were 23.1%. Staff will be requesting for a 
waiver from the Office of Head Start Region IX for the administrative cost limitation for this 
budget period. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends the Executive Committee approve the Request for Waiver of Non-Federal 
Share and Administrative Cost Limitations for San Joaquin County Early Head Start. 
 

22



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

To: Executive Committee 
   
     
 
From: Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child Development     

Date: December 9, 2015 

Subject:    Agenda item 6b: Request to Carry-Over Unexpended San Joaquin County Early 
 Head Start Funding to the 2016-2017 Budget Period – Action Item 
 
 
Staff identified current year savings and is requesting from Region IX to carry-over 
approximately $426,000 to the 2016/2017 program year. The carryover funds will be used to 
address facility repairs, health and safety issues, designing outdoor environments, and to 
furnish facilities when leases are secured for future child care facilities.  
 
Recommendation 

Staff recommends the Executive Committee approve the Request to Carry-Over Unexpended 
San Joaquin County Early Head Start Funding to the 2016-2017 Budget Period. 
 
 

23



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
 

To:  Executive Committee 
 
 
 
From:  Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start / State Child Development  

Date:  December 9, 2015 

Subject: Agenda Item 6c: San Joaquin County Early Head Start Food Service Vendor 
Contract for Contract Year 2016-2017 – Action Item 

 

 

A Request for Proposal was released for child and adult meals for our San Joaquin County 
Early Head Start program. The proposal incorporates the 2nd program year (February 1, 2016 
– January 31, 2017) food service expenses along with an option to renew for an additional 3 
years. The annual total for the contract will exceed the approval threshold of $200,000 and 
require CAPK Board approval.  
 
The terms of the contract will meet all Federal, State, and agency policies. The procurement 
process has met all requirements of agency policy and will be awarded to Creative Child Care, 
Incorporated and subsequently executed with Board Approval. The anticipated annual dollar 
amount based on the terms of the contract will be approximately $272,400. Variables include 
any adjustments in program options, annual inflation of food costs, and continued funding.  
(Please see Food Service Contract Projections attached.)  
 
Recommendation: 
Staff recommends that the Executive Committee approve the San Joaquin County Early Head 
Start Food Service Vendor Contract with Creative Child Care, Incorporated for 2016-2017 and 
expense of the projected dollar amount of $272,400 for the San Joaquin County Food Vendor 
contract supporting the next year of food service.  
 

Attachments:  Food Service Contract Projections 
RFP for Food Service  
Creative Child Care Proposal  

 

24



Community Action Partnership of Kern  
San Joaquin Early Head Start  

Food Service Contract Projections 
Budget Period February 1, 2016 – January 31, 2017 

 

 

California Child and Adult Care Food Program Vendor Agreement between Creative Child Care 

Inc. Food Services and CAPK San Joaquin County Early Head Start 

Summary of Calculations Based on the following daily food order: 

Age of Child CACFP Meal 

Pattern 

Meal Type Number 

of 

Children 

Number 

of  

Adults 

Price Per 

Child 

TOTALS 

Infants/Toddlers 

 

Birth through 36 

Months 

Breakfast 177 50 $1.50 $340.50 

  Lunch 177 50 $2.70 $612.90 

  Snack 177 50 $0.80 $181.60 

Daily Total $1,135.00 

 

Annual Calculation: 

$1,135.00/Day  x 5 Days =$1736./Week     x 48 Weeks = $272,400.00 

         

25



 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 
FOR 

FOOD SERVICE 
 

_________________________________________ 
 

Request for Proposals Number:  CAPK_EHS2015-001 
 

October 28, 2015 
_________________________________________ 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Community Action Partnership of Kern 
5005 Business Park North 

Bakersfield, California 93309 
661-336-5236 

 
 
 
 

26



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 2 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS CAPK_EHS2015-001 

Food Service 

Table of Contents 
 
 
 
 

 
Proposal Checklist        3 

General Conditions        4 

Special Conditions         5 

Proposal Evaluation        6 

Vendor’s Obligations        7 

Subcontracts         8 

Vendor CAPK_EHS2015-001       9-10 

Draft Contract         11-14 

Appendix A: Vendor Information Sheet      15 

Appendix B: W-9 Form        16 

Appendix C: Certifications       17 

 

 

27



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 3 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

RFP# CAPK_EHS2015-001 PROPOSAL CHECKLIST (MANDATORY) 
 
Proposal Title 
CAPK_EHS2015-001 

Due Date 
11/13/15 

Primary Contact Title 

Company 
 

Phone Fax 

Address 
 

City State or Province Zip 

Secondary Contact 
 

Title 

Company 
 

Phone Fax 

Address 
 

City State or Province Zip 

VENDOR MUST SIGN THIS FORM BELOW and ANSWER THE FOLLOWING QUESTIONS: 
Do you accept all Terms & Conditions in the Sample Contract? (if no, explain on separate page)                                       ___ Yes  ___  No 

Are you a Minority or Women-Owned Business Enterprise?                                                                                                 ___ Yes  ___  No 

Are you submitting the required one (1) original and one (1) copy of you proposal?                                                            ___ Yes  ___  No 
  
ON WHAT PAGE IN YOUR PROPOSAL CAN THESE ITEMS BE FOUND? 
Firm’s experience and capabilities information                           ___ 

Names and qualifications of primary staff                                   ___ 

Conflict of Interest statement                                                       ___ 

Completed and Signed Bid Form CAPK_EHS2015-001             ___ 

Signed Certifications Form                                                          ___ 

References                                                                                  ___ 

 

Business License copy                                                               ___ 

Health Permit copy                                                                     ___ 

ServSafe Certifications copies                                                    ___ 

Vendor Information Sheet                                                           ___ 

W-9                                                                                             ___ 

Required samples                                                                      ___ 

 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE & CERTIFICATION 
I certify that the above information, and all information submitted in connection with this proposal is complete, true, and accurate and that 
the requirements noted have been completed and are enclosed.  I affirm that I understand and will comply with Community Action 
Partnership of Kern’s procedures and all other applicable Federal, state and local laws and regulations.  I understand that this proposal 
may be disqualified if the solicitation requirements are not met.  I the undersigned am authorized to commit my organization to this 
proposal. 
Signature 
 

Name 

Title 
 

Organization 

Phone 
 

Date 

NOTE: This completed form MUST be signed and attached to the front of all copies your proposal. 

28



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 4 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

 
Community Action Partnership of Kern 

5005 Business Park North  •  Bakersfield, CA  93309 
(661) 336-5236  •   Fax: (661) 336-5228 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP): 

CAPK_EHS2015-001 

I. GENERAL CONDITIONS 
A. Purpose:  This Request for Proposals (RFP) is to obtain the services of a qualified Vendor 

(“Vendor”) to provide food service for 10 locations for the Early Head Start program (infants and 
toddlers) for Community Action Partnership of Kern (‘CAPK”) in the Stockton, CA area. 

B. Instructions for Proposal Submission: 

1. Closing Submission Date: Proposals must be submitted not later than 11:00 a.m., 
Friday, November 13, 2015. 

2. Inquiries: Inquiries concerning this RFP should be directed to Margaret Palmer, 
Business Manager, at: mpalmer@capk.org. 

3. Submission Address:  Your proposal should be addressed as follows: 
Community Action Partnership of Kern (CAPK) 
FOOD Services RFP No. CAPK_EHS2015-001 

     Attention:  Margaret Palmer, Business Manager 
     5005 Business Park North 
     Bakersfield, CA  93309 

It is important that the proposal be addressed as indicated above and submitted by the due date/time 
in an envelope clearly marked in the lower left-hand corner with the following information: “Food 
Service RFP No. CAPK_EHS2015-001”.   
It is the responsibility of the Vendor to ensure that CAPK receives the proposals by the date and time 
specified above.  Late proposals will not be considered.  Confirmation of receipt is the sole 
responsibility of Vendor.  Each and every Vendor must submit their proposal using the enclosed 
format.  If any proposal submitted deviates from the requested proposal format, it may be cause for 
disqualification.  This does not, however, preclude the Vendor from offering value-added alternatives 
and additional, relevant information in addition to the information requested in the RFP.  The 
alternatives, however, must be fully explained in written form, and must be separately stated as 
alternatives in both the proposal content and fee proposal. 

C. Timelines:  

 
Date Event 

Oct 28, 2015 Issue RFP to interested Vendors and advertise in newspaper(s) 
Nov 6, 2015 Due date for Vendor questions 
Nov 9, 2015 Responses to Vendor questions emailed to Vendors 

Nov 13, 2015 @ 11:00 AM DUE DATE FOR PROPOSALS FROM VENDORS 

Nov 16 - 20, 2015 CAPK analysis of proposals and interviews, if required 
Nov 24, 2015 Board approval 

Dec 1 - 2, 2015 Contract award and execution 
Feb 1, 2015 – Jan 31, 2016 Contract term – may be renewed for 1 year up to 3 times 

D. Right to Reject: CAPK reserves the right to reject any and all proposals received in response to this 
RFP.  A contract (the “Contract”) for the accepted proposal will be based upon the factors described in 
this RFP.  CAPK reserves the right to waive any and all informalities or irregularities in any proposal. 

E. Small, Women and/or Minority-Owned Business: Efforts will be made by CAPK to utilize small 
businesses, women and minority-owned businesses, with the consideration that the primary 
responsibility is the most favorable return to CAPK. 
A Vendor qualifies as a small business firm if it meets the definition of "small business" as established 
by the Small Business Administration (13 CFR 121.201). 

29



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 5 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

F. Price: All prices and quotations must be typed or written in ink utilizing attached bid form.  No 
erasures or correction fluid is permitted.  Errors may be crossed out and corrections printed in ink by 
the person signing the proposal. 

ENCLOSED BID FORM IS TO BE SUBMITTED WITH PROPOSAL. 

G. Date Available to Start:  Availability to start on or about February 1, 2016, is a part of the 
consideration and must be stated in definite terms and must be adhered to. 

H. Authorized Proposals: All proposals must be dated and signed by a responsible officer or employee of 
the Vendor.  All proposals must have the Vendor’s name clearly indicated in the proposal. 

II.  SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
A. Background: Community Action Partnership of Kern (CAPK) San Joaquin Early Head Start (EHS) 

program participates in the Child and Adult Care Food Program (CACFP). CACFP features a nutrition 
program that meets the nutritional needs and feeding requirements of each child, including those with 
special dietary needs and disabilities (with proper medical documentation).  

 
The program serves a variety of foods, considers culture and ethnic preferences, and broadens the 
child's food experience. Foods served are high in nutrients, low in fat, sugar, and salt, and conform to 
the serving sizes and requirements of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA), CACFP 
meal patterns, and using the Healthy, Hunger-Free Kids Act (HHFKA) Food Based Menu Planning 
option.  
CAPK is seeking to find a qualified Vendor to provide food service as described in Section I.  The 
purpose of this RFP is to provide a method of selection and the basis for negotiating the Contract.  
The Contract term would be February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017, with an option to renew for a 
one (1) year term up to three (3) times. 
Vendors must demonstrate prior similar experience, a minimum of five years of operation in the 
present form of business organization and prior similar or comparable projects by key personnel 
assigned to this project. 

B. Scope of Work: Vendor is to provide all items as described below and in further detail on Bid Form 
CAPK_EHS2015-001 
The scope of this project includes all provision of vended meal services to CAPK EHS programs in 
San Joaquin County, including menu development, meal preparation and transport. All meals will 
adhere to all the nutritional guidelines set by the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) and 
CACFP meal patterns for infants and toddlers.  

 
The selected bidder will be responsible for the analysis of the nutritional content for all meals. 
Reasonable effort must be made to serve meat that is natural, hormone and anti-biotic-free, whole 
grains, fresh seasonal fruits and vegetables, and milk that is hormone and rBST-free. Provision of 
vegan/gluten-free meals and other food substitutions based on medical necessity or personal beliefs 
will be available. Provision of formula shall include at least one alternative formula to be available for 
infants with special dietary needs.  

 
The following criteria must be met : 

• Compliance to current CACFP regulations 
• Meal content information; nutritional components/ingredients and an itemization of the 

quantities of each component used to prepare each meal 
• Weekly meal ordering structure, inclusive of milk, with delivery to proposed sites no later than 

10:00A.M. daily in accordance with the number of meals requested 
• Increasing/decreasing of the number of meal orders, as needed, within 24 hour timeframe 
• Pricing structure to reflect portion sizes aligned with the CACFP infant/toddler meal patterns 
• Invoicing per meal, per child using format as structured within the Bid Form, provided within 

the first ten (10) days of the month for the previous month’s meals 
• Copy of Business License 
• Evidence of Health Certifications for the food service facility 
• Evidence of ServSafe Certifications 
• Submit a minimum of three (3) Sample Menus 
• Submit sample 21-day Cycle Menus 
• Submit sample Kitchen Reports 
• Submit sample Transport and Serve Menus 

30



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 6 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

C. Technical Proposal Information 
a. Describe the Vendor’s experience and capabilities with regard to non-profit agencies.   
b. List the name(s) and professional qualifications of the primary staff that will be assigned to 

CAPK’s account. 
1. Include job title, current responsibilities, total years of experience, years with the 

Vendor, degrees and certifications, professional affiliations, and any other relevant 
information. 

2. Provide a list of other key personnel who will be assigned to CAPK’s account. 
3. Describe any services or portion of services that will be performed by a subcontracting 

vendor, and provide relevant information on such subcontractor’s qualifications and 
personnel. 

c. All nutrition staff must be ServSafe-certified and strictly adhere to the California Food Safety 
code pertaining to preparation and holding temperatures, including during transport.  

d. Continuous support will be required pertaining to certification, audits and validations. Vendor will 
maintain and provide all necessary records to support monitoring processes and CACFP 
reviews. 

D. Conflict of Interest: Provide a statement of any potential conflicts Vendor and/or key staff may have 
regarding these services.  The statement should not only include actual conflicts, but also any working 
relationships that may be perceived by disinterested parties as a conflict.  If no potential conflicts of 
interest are identified, so state in your proposal. 

E. Minority, Women or Small Business:  If Vendor qualifies as a small, women or minority-owned 
business, provide documentation of qualifications. 

F. Fee Proposal/BID Form CAPK_EHS2015-001:  All proposals must state the maximum total 
compensation for performing services for the term of the Contract.  Bid Form CAPK_EHS2015-001 
must be completed and submitted with proposal.  

G. Submittal Documents:  
a. Page 3:  RFP# CAPK_EHS2015-001 Proposal Checklist 
b. Page 10: Signed Bid Form CAPK_EHS2015-001; Vendor’s signature on which indicates 

acceptance of all Addendums, Contract Terms and Conditions and Federal Assurances.  All 
forms can be located at http://www.capk.org/index.cfm/fuseaction/pages.page/id/695    

c. Page 15: Vendor Information Sheet 
d. Page 16: W-9 
e. Page 17: Certifications 
f. Three references who can comment on the past performance of Vendor.  References are to 

include telephone, facsimile and e-mail. 
g. A copy of current Business License. 
h. Evidence of Health Permit. 
i. Evidence of ServSafe Certifications. 
j. In a separate document provide the following information: 

i. A detailed explanation of the services quoted. 
ii. Conflict of Interest Statement. 

III. PROPOSAL EVALUATION 
A. Submission of Proposals: All proposals shall include one (1) original and one (1) complete copy of the 

Vendor’s proposal.  This document will become part of the Contract. 
B. Non-responsive Proposals: Proposals may be judged non-responsive and removed from further 

consideration if any of the following occur: 
1. The proposal is not received timely, in accordance with the terms of this RFP. 
2. The proposal does not follow the specified format and respond adequately to each item in 

Section II. 
C. Selection: This is a NEGOTIATED procurement and as such, award will not necessarily be made to 

the Vendor submitting the lowest priced proposal.  Award will be made to the Vendor submitting the 
best responsive proposal satisfying CAPK’S requirements, as determined by CAPK, including price 

31



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 7 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

and other indicated factors.  The selection process will be followed by contract negotiation.  The 
FINAL pricing in the resulting Contract shall be the pricing included in Vendor’s bid documents.  If 
negotiations are unsuccessful, CAPK will proceed with negotiations with the next qualifying Vendor. 
It is recognized that the selected Vendor will be required to collect all pertinent information necessary 
to complete the required services in advance of all required deadlines.  Therefore, all responding 
Vendors will keep this in mind when preparing their responses to the RFP. 
The selection process is designed to ensure that the Vendor’s services/products are engaged on the 
basis of demonstrated competence and qualifications for the type of services to be performed and at 
fair and reasonable prices for CAPK.  CAPK may, at its discretion, request presentations or additional 
information with any or all Vendors to clarify or negotiate modifications to the Vendors’ proposals. 
However, CAPK reserves the right to make an award without further discussion of the proposals 
submitted.  Therefore, proposals should be submitted initially on the most favorable terms, from both 
technical and price standpoints, which Vendor can propose. 
CAPK shall be solely responsible for awarding the Contract. 

D. Solicitation Caveat: Vendor understands and agrees that CAPK shall have no financial responsibility 
for any costs incurred by Vendor in responding to this RFP and shall not be liable for any Vendor costs 
attributed to the planning and design of the project until the Vendor has executed a Contract with 
CAPK and has been authorized in writing to proceed.  CAPK reserves the right to terminate this RFP 
after three (3) days (72-hours) notice to all prospective Vendors. 

E. Signature: The Bid Form, all Information required of Vendor or prequalification forms and all other 
forms enclosed must be signed in the name of Vendor and must bear the signature of the person or 
persons duly authorized to sign these documents. Where indicated, if Vendor is a corporation, the 
legal name of the corporation shall first be set forth, together with two signatures: one from among the 
chairman of the board, president or vice president and one from among the secretary, chief financial 
officer, or assistant treasurer.  Alternatively, the signature of other authorized officers or agents may 
be affixed, if duly authorized by the corporation. Such documents shall include the title of such 
signatories below the signature and shall bear the corporate seal. Where indicated, in the event that 
Vendor  is a joint venture or partnership, there shall be submitted with the bid certifications signed by 
authorized officers of each of the parties to the joint venture or partnership, naming the individual who 
shall be the agent of the joint venture or partnership, who shall sign all necessary documents for the 
joint venture or partnership and, should the joint venture or partnership be the successful Vendor, who 
shall act in all matters relative to the contract resulting there from for the joint venture or partnership. If 
Vendor is an individual, his/her signature shall be placed on such documents.  

F. Withdrawal of Bids:  Any proposal may be withdrawn, either personally, or by written request, at any 
time prior to the scheduled closing time for receipt of bids 

G. Contract: The Contract, which the successful Vendor will be required to execute, is included in the 
RFP documents and should be carefully examined by Vendor.  

IV.  VENDOR’S OBLIGATIONS 

A. Laws and Regulations:  Vendor shall obey all State and Federal regulations and guidelines now or   
hereafter enacted.  

B. Independent Contractor: Vendor understands and agrees that it is an "independent contractor" with 
respect to the services to be performed under the Contract.  CAPK shall be exempt from payment of all 
unemployment compensation, FICA, retirement, life and/or medical insurance and workers' 
compensation Insurance. 

C. Insurance: Vendor shall procure, furnish and maintain for the duration of the Contract, the following 
types and limits of insurance: 
1. Automobile Liability Insurance, providing coverage on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, 

including death, of one or more persons, property damage and personal injury, with limits of not 
less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and the policy shall: 
a. Provide coverage for owned, non-owned and hired autos. 
b. Contain an additional insured endorsement in favor of Community Action Partnership of Kern, 

its board, officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 
2. Broad Form Commercial General Liability Insurance, ISO form CG00 01 11 85 or 88 providing 

coverage on an occurrence basis for bodily injury, including death, of one or more persons, 
property damage and personal injury, with limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) 
per occurrence; and the policy shall: 

32



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 8 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

a. Provide Contractual Liability coverage for the term of the Contract. 
b. Contain an additional insured endorsement in favor in favor of Community Action Partnership 

of Kern, its board, officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 
3. Workers' Compensation Insurance with statutory limits and employer's liability insurance with 

limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence; and the policy shall contain 
a waiver of subrogation endorsement in favor of Community Action Partnership of Kern, its board, 
officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 
All policies required of the Vendor shall be primary insurance as to CAPK, its board, officers, 
agents employees and volunteers and any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Community 
Action Partnership of Kern, its board, officers, agents employees and designated volunteers shall 
be in excess of the Vendor’s insurance and shall not contribute with it.  Additional insured 
endorsement shall use ISO form CG20 10 11 85 (in no event with an edition date later than 1990). 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A: VII.  Any deductibles, 
self-insured retentions or insurance in lesser amounts, or lack of certain types of insurance 
otherwise required by this Contract, or insurance rated below Bests' A: VII, must be declared prior 
to execution of this Contract and approved by the City of Bakersfield in writing. 
All policies shall contain an endorsement providing CAPK with thirty (30) days written notice of 
cancellation or material change in policy language or terms.  All policies shall provide that there 
shall be continuing liability thereon, notwithstanding any recovery on any policy. 
The insurance required hereunder shall be maintained until all work required to be performed by 
the Contract is satisfactorily completed. 
Vendor shall furnish CAPK with a certificate of insurance and required endorsements evidencing 
the insurance required.  CAPK may withdraw its offer of Contract or cancel the Contract if 
certificates of insurance and endorsements required have not been provided prior to the execution 
of the Contract. 

D. Indemnity: Vendor shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the CAPK, its officers, agents and 
employees against any and all liability, claims, actions, causes of action or demands whatsoever 
against them, or any of them, before administrative or judicial tribunals of any kind whatsoever, arising 
out of, connected with, or caused by Vendor, Vendor’s employees, agents or independent contractors 
or companies in the performance of, or in any way arising from, the terms and provisions of the 
Contract, whether or not caused in part by a party indemnified hereunder, except as limited by 
California Civil Code Section 2782. 

V. SUBCONTRACTS 
Vendor shall cause all of the provisions of the Contract in its entirety to be included in and made a part of any 
subcontract executed in the performance of the Contract. 
Vendor shall undertake to insure that all subcontracts let in the performance of the Contract shall be awarded 
on a fair and open competition basis.  Executed copies of all subcontracts shall be forwarded to CAPK along 
with documentation concerning the selection process. 

 

33



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 9 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

BID FORM CAPK_EHS2015-001 
 

 
The following locations* and age groups to be considered for this proposal: 
 

 Site Address # 
Infants 

# Toddlers Breakfast 
Time 

Lunch 
Time 

Center Hours 

1. California St. EHS 425 N. California St., 
Stockton 

8 16 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

2. St. Mary’s EHS 545 W. Sonora St., 
Stockton 

8 8 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

3. Walnut EHS 115 N. Walnut Ave, 
Manteca 

6 14 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

4. 4th St./ Tracy Homes 
EHS 

340 W. 4th Street, Tracy 0 8 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

5. 4th St. EHS 238 W. 4th St., Stockton 8 24 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 
6. Gianone EHS 1509 N. Golden Gate, 

Stockton 
0 16 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

7. Barnett House EHS 347 E. Poplar St. 8 7 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 
8. Chrisman EHS 23950 S. Chrisman Rd., 

Tracy 
6 16 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

9. Lodi United Christian 
Church EHS 

701 S. Hutchins St., Lodi 8 15 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

10. Dorothy Mahin EHS 5080 Armstrong Rd., 
Lodi 

0 16 8:00 11:00 7:30-1:30 

  Totals by Age 52 140  Grand 
Total 

192 children 

 
Proposed Pricing Structure by Meal Type, Age Group, CACFP Meal Patterns, and Price: 
 
Age of Child Number 

of 
Children 

CACFP Meal Pattern Meal Type Price Per 
Child 

Total Price 
(number of 
children X price 
per child) 

 

Infants* 
 

12 Birth through 3 Months Breakfast $  *based upon on-
demand feeding 
schedule; every 
2-3 hours/6 hour 
day 

 12  Lunch $   
 12  Snack $   
 14 4 through 7 Months Breakfast $   
 14  Lunch $   
 14  Snack $   
 12 8 through 11 Months Breakfast $   
 12  Lunch $   
 12  Snack $   
Toddlers 154 12 through 36 Months Breakfast $  *includes mobile 

infants  
 154  Lunch $   
 154  Snack $   
 
TOTAL 

 
192 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
Please note that highlighted sites are estimated to require service delivery to begin February 1, 2016. Dates 
for subsequent service delivery at remaining sites to be determined. Dates, times and numbers of children in 

34



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 10 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

each age group are subject to change according to enrollment. Advance notice will be given to the bidder to 
ensure accuracy in meal service delivery and adherence to CACFP meal patterns.  
 
 
Vendor:____________________________________ 
 
Signature:__________________________________  Date:_______________________ 
 
Title:______________________________________ 
 
Printed Name:_______________________________ 

35



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 11 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

 Community Action Partnership of Kern 
5005 Business Park North  •  Bakersfield, CA  93309 

P: (661) 336-5236     F: (661) 864-1312 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES AGREEMENT 

This Contract for Services Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into as of this _____ day of December, 
2016 by and between ________________ (“Vendor”) and Community Action Partnership of Kern (“CAPK”).  In 
consideration of mutual promises and agreements of the parties as herein set forth, Vendor agrees as follows: 
1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES.  Vendor is to perform all services as per the Scope of Work found in Attachment A 

attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
2. LOCATION FOR SERVICES. San Joaquin County. 

3. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES.  Payment for services shall be as outlined in Bid Form CAPK_EHS2015-001.  Payment 
will be made when CAPK has determined that the work effort has been satisfactorily completed.  Vendor will 
submit an original invoice detailing all services provided to CAPK’s Finance Department.  This Agreement 
supersedes any other contracts in effect, either implied or otherwise.   

Note:  The Vendor shall mail all invoices to:  Community Action Partnership of Kern, Attn: Accounts 
Payable, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA  93309.   

4. TERM.  The period of performance for this Agreement is February 1, 2016 through January 31, 2017. 
5. OPTION TO RENEW.  This Agreement may be renewed for one (1) 12 month period, up to three (3) times 

upon agreement between CAPK and Vendor.  Said extension shall be based on the quality of work and 
reasonableness of fees for service.  Also, said Agreement extension shall be addressed as an Amendment 
to the Agreement and must be signed by all parties involved. 

6. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES. While engaged in carrying out and complying with terms and conditions of this 
Agreement, the Vendor is an independent contractor and not an officer, employee or agent of CAPK. 

7. INSURANCE.  Vendor shall procure, furnish and maintain at all times for the duration of this Agreement the types 
and limits of insurance specified in Attachment B, incorporated herein by reference. 

8. NOTICES.  Any notice or notices required or permitted to be given pursuant to this Agreement may be personally 
served on the other party by the party giving such notice, or may be served by Certified Mail, to the address set 
forth below. 

Vendor:      CAPK: 
________________________________   Community Action Partnership of Kern 
ATTN:___________________________   ATTN: Christina Short 
________________________________   1145 North Hunter Street 
________________________________   Stockton, CA  95202 
Phone:___________Fax:____________   Phone: (209) 242-9520 

9. RECORDKEEPING.  Payroll and basic records pertaining to the services described in Attachment A shall be kept 
on a generally recognized accounting basis and shall be available to CAPK at mutually convenient times.  The 
Vendor shall maintain all records pertaining to this Agreement for a period of five (5) years.  Vendor shall further 
maintain all such records until resolution of all related audit and monitoring findings are completed. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION.  Vendor agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the CAPK from all claims, losses, expenses, 
fees, including attorney fees, costs, and judgments that may be asserted against Vendor while executing this 
Agreement. 

11. HOLDING OVER: Any holdover after the expiration date of this Agreement shall be construed as a month-to-
month agreement in accordance with the terms hereof as applicable until the Agreement has been renewed in 
accordance with Section 5 above, not to exceed 12 months. 

12. EVALUATION.  Vendor may be evaluated throughout the term of this Agreement.  If Vendor fails to provide 
satisfactory service, CAPK may terminate this Agreement with a written notice. 

ACCOUNT CODE:   
 
Contract Log: 

36



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 12 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

13. APPLICABLE LAW.  The Laws of the State of California shall govern this Agreement. 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date hereinabove first written.  
Signature below indicates acceptance of all CAPK Contract Addendums:  Additional Terms and 
Conditions; Federal Assurances; Addendum A: Certification Regarding Lobbying; Addendum B: 
Debarment and Suspension Certification; Addendum C: Noncollusion Affidavit; Addendum D: Equal 
Opportunity; Addendum E: Utilization of Women and Minority Business Enterprises; Addendum F: 
Equal Opportunity for Special Disabled Veterans; Addendum G: Certification of Worker’s Compensation; 
Addendum H: Insurance Requirements; Addendum I: Prevailing Wage /Davis Bacon Compliance 
Certification (if required); and Addendum J: Material and Workmanship Warranty (if required); as made 
available at:  http://www.capk.org/store/files/87.pdf. 

VENDOR:_____________________________    LICENSE NO.:                            

Signature:         Date:     

Printed Name:         Title:      

CAPK:  COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 

 
Signature:         Date:    
     Jeremy T. Tobias, Executive Director 
 

37



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 13 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

 
38



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 14 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 39



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 15 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

APPENDIX A 

 
 

40



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 16 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

APPENDIX B 

 

 

41



Community Action Partnership of Kern Page 17 
RFP CAPK_EHS2015-001 

APPENDIX C 

CERTIFICATIONS 
On behalf of the Vendor: 

1. The individual signing certifies that he/she is authorized to contract on behalf of the Vendor. 
2. The individual signing certifies that the Vendor is not involved in any agreement to pay money or other 

consideration for the execution of this agreement, other than to an employee of the Vendor. 
3. The individual signing certifies that the prices in this proposal have been arrived at independently, without 

consultation, communication, or agreement, for the purpose of restricting competition. 
4. The individual signing certifies that the prices quoted in this proposal have not been knowingly disclosed by 

the Vendor prior to an award to any other Vendor or potential Vendor. 
5. The individual signing certifies that there has been no attempt by the Vendor to discourage any potential 

Vendor from submitting a proposal. 
6. The individual signing certifies that he/she has read and understands all of the information in this Request for 

Proposal. 
7. The individual signing certifies that the Vendor, and any individuals to be assigned to the project, does not 

have a record of substandard work and has not been debarred or suspended from doing work with any 
federal, state or local government.  

8. The individual signing certifies that he/she has read and understands all of the following Addendums 
(Addendum A: Certification Regarding Lobbying; Addendum B: Debarment and Suspension Certification; 
Addendum C: Noncollusion Affidavit; Addendum D: Equal Opportunity; Addendum E: Utilization of Women and 
Minority Business Enterprises; Addendum F: Equal Opportunity for Special Disabled Veterans; Addendum G: 
Certification of Worker’s Compensation; Addendum H: Insurance Requirements; Addendum I: Prevailing 
Wage Requirements and Compliance Certification; Addendum J: Material and Workmanship Warranty; and 
Federal Assurances, as made available at: http://www.capk.org/index.cfm/fuseaction/pages.page/id/695 

 
Dated this _______ day of ____________, 20_____. 
 
______________________________________ 
(Vendor’s Firm Name) 
 
_____________________________________ 
(Signature of Vendor’s Representative) 
 
______________________________________ 
(Printed Name and Title of Individual Signing) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



CAPK
Board of Directors

Finance Director 
Christine Anami

Planning, Research & 
Development Director 

Ralph Martinez

Human Resources
Director 

Michele Nowell

Health & Nutrition
Services Director
Carmen Segovia

Family, Youth & 
Community Services 

Director
Romala Ramkissoon

Head Start / State Child 
Development Programs 

Director
Yolanda Gonzales

Head Start – Parent Policy Council

• Accounting Services
• Financial Statements/Reports

• Financial Compliance
• Monitoring

• Single Agency-Wide Audit

• Grant Management
• Research & Analysis

• Project & Fund Development
• Outreach & Advocacy

•Early Head Start
• Head Start
• Home Base

• State Child Care
• San Joaquin EHS Grant
• Kern Partnership Grant

Assistant to the Executive Director 
Amanda Norman

Executive Director 
Jeremy T. Tobias

Operations
Director 

Emilio Wagner

Agency Organizational Chart

•211Kern County
• Community Services Block 

Grant
• Friendship House

• Green Energy Program
• Individual Development

Account
• Migrant Childcare Alternative 

Payment Program (MCAP)
• Shafter Youth Center

•Voluntary Income Tax 
Assistant/ Earned Income

Tax Credit (VITA/ETIC TCE)

• Reception/Mailroom

• Warehouse

•Operations

•Reprographics

•Information Technology

•Procurement

•Contracts & Leases

•Safety & Loss Control

•Risk 

Management/Safety

• Central Kitchen 

(CACFP)
•Food Bank

•HIV Prevention & Testing

•Women Infant & Children 

(WIC)
•East Kern Family

Resource Center

•Personnel Management

•Benefits

• Recruitment

•Union Contract

•Compensation Compliance

•Payroll

Current 

56



CAPK
Board of Directors

Finance Director 
Christine Anami

Community 
Development Director 

Ralph Martinez

Human Resources
Director 

Michele Nowell

Health & Nutrition 
Services Director 
Carmen Segovia

Community Services 
Director

Romala Ramkissoon

Head Start / State Child 
Development Programs

Director
Yolanda Gonzales

Head Start – Parent Policy Council

• Accounting Services
• Financial Statements/Reports

• Financial Compliance
• Monitoring

• Single Agency-Wide Audit

• Grant Management
• Research & Analysis

• Project & Fund Development
• Outreach & Advocacy

• CSBG
• Friendship House

• Shafter Youth Center

•Early Head Start
• Head Start
• Home Base

• State Child Care
• San Joaquin EHS Grant
• Kern Partnership Grant

Assistant to the Executive Director 
Amanda Norman

Executive Director 
Jeremy T. Tobias

Operations Director 
Emilio Wagner

Agency Organizational Chart

• Energy Program
• 2-1-1

• Voluntary Income Tax 
Assistant/ Earned 
Income Tax Credit
(VITA/EITC/IDA)

• Reception
• Mailroom

• Warehouse

• Operations

• Reprographics

• Information Technology

• Procurement

• Contracts & Leases

• Safety & Loss Control

• Risk Management/Safety

• Central Kitchen
• Food Bank

• HIV Prevention & Testing

• Women Infant & Children (WIC)

• East Kern Family Resource 
Center
• MCAP

• Personnel Management

• Benefits

• Recruitment

• Union Contract

• Compensation Compliance

• Payroll

Proposed 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

PENDING - NOVEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF APP FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT 

B&F  MEETING  SUBMISSION REQUESTED

05/20/15 09/24/15 CHEVRON FHCC: ROBOTICS AND STEM 6,750$                    

05/20/15 09/23/15 CHEVRON FOOD BANK: BACKPACK BUDDIES 35,000$                  

08/12/15 09/03/15 THE HEFFERNAN FOUNDATION FHCC- COMPUTER LAB UPGRADE 7,500$                    

08/12/15 07/21/15 FINISHLINE YOUTH FOUNDATION FHCC YOUTH SPORTS CAMP 5,000$                    

09/23/15 09/15/15 CARE FOR KIDS FOOD BANK (BACKPACK BUDDIES) 10,000$                  

10/21/15 09/28/15 WELLS FARGO FOUNDATION VITA/YOUR DOLLARS & $ENSE (FINANCIAL EMPOWERMENT) 35,000$                  

10/21/15 10/20/15 WONDERFUL FOUNDATION SYC- PREP WORKS 49,000$                  

10/21/15 12/31/2014 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT (CSD) ENERGY (LIHEAP) 8,105,936$             

10/21/15 12/31/2014 CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT (CSD) CSBG 1,396,948$             

10/28/15 (Board) 10/30/2015 CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION FHCC & SYC MARINE STUDIES PROGRAM 15,888$                  

11/18/2015 10/29/2015 AMERICAN HONDA FOUNDATION FHCC & SYC STEM PROGRAM 68,250$                  

11/18/2015 10/19/2015 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO. FOOD BANK 2,000$                    

11/18/2015 10/22/2015 DOMINION RESOURCES FOOD BANK 2,500$                    

11/18/15 11/17/15 BANK OF THE WEST VITA 1,500$                    

12/9/2015(Exec) 11/24/15 USDA/ NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE (NIFA) FOOD BANK : KERN NUTRITION ON WHEELS 329,500$                

12/9/15(Exec) 11/30/15 UNITED WAY OF KERN FOOD BANK : COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 25,000$                  

67



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN
APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 
AWARDED - NOVEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT AMOUNT FUNDING

B&F  MEETING NOTIFICATION REQUESTED AWARDED PERIOD

02/18/15 06/01/15 KAISER PERMANENTE FHCC/SYC- GROW FIT PROJECT EXPANSION 15,441$               10,000$                07/01/15-6/30/16

04/22/15 09/30/15 SUBWAY FOOD BANK: BACKPACK BUDDIES (UP TO $10,000) 10,000$               TBD 07/2015-06/2016

04/22/15 04/30/15 UNITED WAY OF TULARE COUNTY (SUB - 3 YR.) 2-1-1 KERN 162,000$             162,000$              06/01/15-05/31/18

04/22/15 N/A US DEPT OF JUSTICE/KC PROBATION (SUB -  3 YR) FHCC/KERN JUSTICE ASSISTANCE GRANT (JAG)  173,769$             173,769$              03/01/15-02/28/18

04/22/15 N/A CA ENDOWMENT/KCSOS FHCC/LOCAL CONTROL & ACCT. PLAN 19,555$               19,555$                04/01/15-08/31/16

04/22/15 07/01/15 KINGS UNITED WAY (3 YR) 2-1-1 KERN 42,000$               42,000$                06/01/15-05/31/18

04/22/15 05/15/15 CA DEPT  OF COMMUNITY SERVICES & DEVELOPMENT (CSD) FHCC & SYC YOUTH EMPLOYMENT 71,817$               71,817$                07/01/15-03/31/15

04/29/15 (Board) 04/30/15 CA DEPT OF EDUCATION, NUTRITION SERVICES DIVISION SUMMER FOOD SERVICE PROGRAM (SFSP) 57,153$               42,417$                06/01/15-07/31/15

05/20/15 09/01/15 UNITED WAY OF MERCED /MARIPOSA AND MERCED COUNTIES 2-1-1 MOUNTAIN VALLEY CALL ANSWERING SERVICE TBD TBD 10/01/15-09/30/16

05/20/15 03/15/15 CA DEPT. OF DEVELOPMENTAL SERVICES
2-1-1 KERN COUNTY/DEVELOPMENTAL SCREENING AND 
CARE 10,000$               10,000$                04/01/15-06/30/15

06/17/15 06/15/15 PG&E FHCC- COMPUTER LAB UPGRADE 3,000$                 3,000$                  07/01/15 – 06/30/16

06/17/15 06/30/15
HHS SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION AND TREATEMENT (SAPT) BLOCK 
GRANT HIV TESTING AND PREVENTION SERVICES 128,213$             128,213$              07/01/15-06/30/16

06/17/15 07/23/15 USDA WIC (4 yrs) WIC SERVICES 15,967,754$        15,967,754$         10/01/15-09/01/19

08/12/15 09/24/15 TARGET COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT SYC-COMMUNITY GARDEN FENCE 3,000$                 2,000$                  10/1/2015-9/30/2016

08/12/15 10/09/15 BANK OF AMERICA 
FOOD BANK COMMUNITY RESOURCE FAIRS AND 
PROCUREMENT OF FRESH PRODUCE 26,000$               6,000$                  1/1/2016-12/31/2016

09/23/15 11/13/15 THE BAKERSFIELD CALIFORNIAN FOUNDATION FOOD BANK (SOLAR PROJECT) 100,000$             100,000$              1/1/2016 -12/31/2016

TOTAL 16,738,525$         

68



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

DECLINED -NOVEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT 

B&F  MEETING NOTIFICATION REQUESTED

01/28/15 (Board) 6/3/2015 MAZON - A JEWISH RESPONSE TO HUNGER FOOD BANK (OPERATING COSTS) $10,000.00

03/11/15 02/18/15 JUNIOR LEAGUE OF BAKERSFIELD FRIENDSHIP HOUSE COMMUNITY CENTER (QUAD) $50,000.00

03/11/15 05/01/15 NATIONAL CANCER INSTITUTE 2-1-1 KERN (SMOKE-FREE HOMES) $52,778.00

4/22/2015 4/17/2015 WALMART STATE FUND FOOD BANK-TRUCK AND PALLET WRAPPER $250,000.00

06/17/15 10/01/15 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE VITA -2015 - (2016 TAX SEASON) $98,926.00

69



Enrollment and Eligibility 

 

 

              

EHS Partnership                               San Joaquin County EHS 

Funded enrollment:  56   Enrollment: 40     Funded Enrollment:   364    Enrollment:  280 
                                   

2%

9%

83%

5%

5%

Homeless

Foster

Income Eligible

Over Income

Disability

Kern County HS/EHS 

Funded Enrollment: 2539                    Total Kern Enrollment:        2543 
                                                      

EHS Enrollment:           328                                       HS Enrollment:      2215  
 
 
 

0% 

KERN-Early Head Start 

   0% 

70



 

Highest Average Daily Attendance (ADA)  Lowest Average Daily Attendance (ADA) 

1. Fairview Head Start  100%    1. Lost Hills        91.18% 

2. San Diego Head Start  100%    2. Franklin   92.29% 

3. Voorhies    100%    3. Sunrise Villa  92.53% 

4. Primeros Pasos   99.89%   4. Tehachapi  92.78 

5. East California   99.87%   5. Lamont   94.62% 

97%

88%

99%

85%

98%

Average Daily Attendance

2015-2016

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

71



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

December 9, 2015 

Agenda Item 6j: Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual 

for the Period Ending November 30, 2015 

The following are highlights of the Head Start/Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report for the 
period March 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015. 

It should be noted that the Board of Directors has approved changes to the pending refinance 
of the Pete H. Parra/Campus loan.  At its meeting on November 24, 2015, the Board of 
Directors approved the following: 

• Cancel the blend and extend refinancing option previously approved by the Board at its
September 30, 2015 meeting.

• Break the current interest rate swap agreement that expires on June 20, 2018.
• Pay the breakage fee, estimated to be $300,000, from 2015/16 Head Start/Early Head

Start budget savings.
• Issue an RFP for loan financing for a fixed rate, fully amortizing loan with a 10 and 15

year term.
• Authorize the Executive Committee to approve final selection of the preferred lender at

its meeting on December 9, 2015.

Staff are closely monitoring and, when possible, deferring expenditures of Head Start and 
Early Head Start base grant funds to ensure that sufficient savings are available to cover the 
cost of the interest rate swap agreement breakage fee. 

Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
Expenditures are less than expected at this point in the fiscal year; however, an additional 11 
days of salaries and fringe benefits paid in March 2016 will accrue to the fiscal year ending 
February 29, 2016.  Savings are expected in Early Head Start. 

Equipment 
The Head Start funds in this category were budgeted for the purchase of four program vehicles 
and one playground/shade structure.  These purchases will be deferred until staff are certain 
that savings are sufficient to cover the cost of the breakage fee.  

Supplies 
With the exception of day-to-day and health and safety requirements, purchases of supplies 
will be deferred to the next fiscal year. 

72



Cost Pools 
Expenditures in Head Start are close to budget at this point in the year.  Expenditures in Early 
Head Start are somewhat less than budgeted. 

Training & Technical Assistance 
Staff expects to fully expend these funds by fiscal year-end. 

Non-Federal Share 
Because the Executive Committee meets early in December, the Non-Federal Share and In-
Kind report for November will be presented at the January Budget & Finance Committee 
meeting. 

Staff expects to exceed the required Non-Federal Share by year-end. 

Agency-Wide Credit Card Report 
The Agency-Wide Credit Card Report for November will be presented at the January Budget & 
Finance Committee meeting. 

73



Prepared 12/01/2015

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 

REMAINING
PERSONNEL 9,569,855 6,718,285 2,851,570 70% 30% 1,753,281 1,033,045 720,236 59% 41%
FRINGE BENEFITS 3,208,147 2,304,951 903,196 72% 28% 529,404 297,567 231,837 56% 44%
TRAVEL 0 0 0 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 190,000 0 190,000 0% 100% 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 1,214,513 1,125,930 88,583 93% 7% 164,666 225,542 (60,876) 137% -37%
CONTRACTUAL 97,900 54,163 43,737 55% 45% 9,100 5,830 3,270 64% 36%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER 3,810,864 2,853,707 957,157 75% 25% 497,718 366,560 131,158 74% 26%
COST POOLS 1,434,915 1,115,139 319,776 78% 22% 339,214 211,741 127,473 62% 38%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 19,526,194 14,172,175 5,354,019 73% 27% 3,293,383 2,140,285 1,153,098 65% 35%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
TRAVEL 59,036 41,309 17,727 70% 30% 17,446 7,071 10,375 41% 59%
SUPPLIES 21,544 8,078 13,466 37% 63% 12,372 1,284 11,088 10% 90%
CONTRACTUAL 18,655 9,184 9,471 49% 51% 9,019 216 8,803 2% 98%
OTHER 60,784 89,276 (28,492) 147% -47% 43,498 11,288 32,210 26% 74%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 160,019 147,848 12,171 92% 8% 82,335 19,859 62,476 24% 76%

GRAND TOTAL HS/EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 19,686,213 14,320,023 5,366,190 73% 27% 3,375,718 2,160,144 1,215,574 64% 36%

November non-federal is not included

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

2,827,514 2,017,443 810,071 71% 29% Centralized Administrative Cost 6.5%

2,937,969 2,089,602 848,367 71% 29% Program Administrative Cost 6.8%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL 5,765,483 4,107,045 1,658,438 71% 29% Total Administrative Cost 13.2%

CURRENT 1 TO 30 31 TO 60 61 TO 90 OVER 90 CREDITS TOTAL
Bank of America* 0
Lowe's 0
Save Mart 0
Smart & Final 0
Chevron & Texaco Business Card 0
Home Depot 0

0 0 0 0 0 0

* Expenditure details are included in the CAPK Financial Report
** Non-Federal Share for November is not included.
Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH9142/02, Amendment #2 (conversion of HS to EHS slots).
Actual expenditures include open purchase orders, unliquidated travel, estimated pending expenditures, estimated HS & EHS share of CACFP, General Child Care, State Preschool, 
    and central administration (Cost Pools) costs accrued through 11/30/15.

STATEMENT DATE

SOURCE

EARLY HEAD STARTHEAD START

Community Action Partnership of Kern Agency-Wide Credit Card Report

CALIF DEPT OF ED

IN-KIND

HEAD START and EARLY HEAD START NON-FEDERAL SHARE**

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 - February 29, 2016
Report Period:  March 1, 2015 - November 30, 2015

HEAD START EARLY HEAD START

Month 9 of 12 (75%)

74



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

December 9, 2015 

Agenda Item 6j: Early Head Start – Child Care Partnerships Budget 

to Actual for the Period Ending November 30, 2015 

CAPK is in its first year of implementing the Early Head Start – Child Care Partnerships program.  The 
following are highlights of the Budget to Actual Report for the period March 1, 2015 through November 
30, 2015. 

Program Update 
• Bakersfield College was fully enrolled during the month of November.  The funded enrollment at this

location is 40 children. 
• Blanton Child Development Center – the application for a facility license was submitted in

November to California Department of Social Services, Community Care Licensing.  Services are 
planned to begin in January 2016.  The funded enrollment at this location is 16 children. 

Start-Up Funds 
The start-up budget includes the costs of a vehicle, start-up classroom and office supplies, printing, 
licensing, and hiring costs.  Actual expenditures also included the cost of out-of-county travel for the 
purpose of obtaining training and orientation provided by the Office of Head Start.  Staff are currently in 
the process of procuring the vehicle.  The remainder of the start-up funds will be expended primarily on 
classroom supplies. 

Base Funds 
Expenditures in Personnel and Fringe Benefits are less than planned for this point in the fiscal year. 
Savings are expected in these categories. 

The child care partners are paid for providing Early Head Start services from the Contractual category. 
Because services began later than initially planned, savings in this category are expected.  Staff are in 
the process of evaluating the best use of these savings, and will submit a budget revision if required by 
the funding source. 

Training & Technical Assistance Funds 
Introductory training with Bakersfield College staff took place during the month of November.  Additional 
trainings are being planned as needed to comply with Head Start Performance Standards.   

75



Non-Federal Share 
Both child care partners receive non-federal funds for services to children.  As children are enrolled in 
Early Head Start, these funds may be used to meet the non-federal share requirement.  Because 
services are beginning later than planned, it may be necessary to request a partial waiver of non-
federal share for the initial project period.  Staff are working with its child care partners to determine an 
effective and efficient method to document the non-federal share. 

Administrative Cost 
Administrative costs for Head Start and Early Head Start programs are limited to 15% of total 
expenditures.  The administrative cost reported through November is 12.8%, which is a decrease from 
the 14.6% reported through October.  Higher than normal administrative costs are expected during the 
implementation phase of the project; however, it appears it may not be necessary to request a waiver of 
the administrative cost limitation for the initial project period. 

76



Prepared 12/01/2015

START-UP FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

PERSONNEL 0 0 0
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0
TRAVEL 0 4,841 (4,841)
EQUIPMENT 30,000 0 30,000 0% 100%
SUPPLIES 91,656 29,291 62,365 32% 68%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 17,750 489 17,261 3% 97%
COST POOLS 0 0 0
TOTAL START-UP FUNDING 139,406 34,621 104,785 25% 75%

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

PERSONNEL 107,407 33,393 74,014 31% 69%
FRINGE BENEFITS 38,236 9,900 28,336 26% 74%
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 11,290 14,126 (2,836) 125% -25%
CONTRACTUAL 480,451 68,837 411,614 14% 86%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 33,660 2,201 31,459 7% 93%
COST POOLS 956 3,758 (2,802) 393% -293%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 672,000 132,215 539,785 20% 80%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

TRAVEL 0 1,544 (1,544)
SUPPLIES 3,506 0 3,506 0% 100%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
OTHER 13,294 1,158 12,137 9% 91%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 16,800 2,701 14,099 16% 84%

GRAND TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 828,206 169,537 658,669 20% 80%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

IN-KIND 207,052 0 207,052 0% 100%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 207,052 0 207,052 0% 100%

Centralized Administrative Cost 2.2%
Program Administrative Cost 10.5%

Total Administrative Cost 12.8%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09HP0036/01.
The initial grant action for the first 18 month budget period includes 12 months of operating (base) funding, a portion of T&TA funding,
    and start-up funds.  The remaining operating funds ($336,000) and T&TA funds ($84,000) will be awarded at a later date.  The initial
    budget period is 3/1/2015 - 8/31/2016.  The remaining budget periods will begin September 1 and end August 31.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - Child Care Partnerships

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 - February 29, 2016
Report Period:  March 1, 2015 - November 30, 2015

Month 9 of 12 (75%)

77



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Executive Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

December 9, 2015 

Agenda Item 6j: Early Head Start – San Joaquin County Budget to 

Actual for the Period Ending November 30, 2015 

CAPK is in its first year of implementing the Early Head Start – San Joaquin County program.  
The following are highlights of the Budget to Actual Report for the period July 1, 2015 through 
November 30, 2015. 

Program Update 
At this time, 279 children (out of the funded enrollment of 364) are receiving services. 

Two facilities were licensed and began center-based services on November 2: 
• California Street (Stockton) – 24 children
• Walnut (Manteca) – 20 children

Facility applications for two additional centers were submitted and licensing visits are expected 
in December.  Services are planned to begin in January 2016. 

• Tracy Toddlers (Tracy) – 8 children
• St. Mary’s (Stockton) – 16 children

Start-Up Funds 
All remaining start-up funds have been obligated for facility repairs, maintenance, and minor 
health and safety improvements. 

Base Funds 
At five months into the initial seven-month budget period, there are significant savings in the 
Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Contractual, and Other categories.  A portion of these savings will 
be used to offset expenditures in other categories; staff will submit a request to Office of Head 
Start to carry over remaining funds into the next budget period. 

Training & Technical Assistance Funds 
Staff expect to fully expend these funds prior to the end of the budget period. 

78



Non-Federal Share 
CAPK requested and received a partial waiver of non-federal share with its initial funding 
award.  San Joaquin staff are in the process of implementing in-kind procedures in line with 
those used by CAPK.  As centers begin services to children, parent and community volunteers 
will be given opportunities to provide volunteer services.  Because services have begun later 
than planned, staff will request a waiver of the remaining non-federal share from Office of 
Head Start for this budget period. 

Administrative Cost 
Administrative costs for Head Start and Early Head Start programs are limited to 15% of total 
expenditures.  Administrative cost reported through November is 23.1%, which is a decrease 
from the 26.6% reported through October.  Higher than normal administrative costs are 
expected during the implementation phase of the project.  Staff will request a waiver of the 
administrative cost limitation from Office of Head Start for this budget period. 

79



Prepared 12/01/2015

START-UP FUNDS
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
(4/1/15-

6/30/15)2

ACTUAL 
(7/1/15 and 

after)
REMAINING % SPENT % 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 32,460 17,255 23,306 (8,102) 125% -25%
FRINGE BENEFITS 9,740 4,604 5,059 78 99% 1%
TRAVEL 14,400 13,752 30,083 (29,435) 304% -204%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 145,100 2,925 111,737 30,438 79% 21%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0
OTHER 285,300 10,038 62,172 213,089 25% 75%
COST POOLS 0 1,464 0 (1,464)
TOTAL 487,000 50,038 232,357 204,605 58% 42%

BASE FUNDS
PERSONNEL 1,589,705 759,781 829,924 48% 52%
FRINGE BENEFITS 509,459 175,565 333,894 34% 66%
TRAVEL 8,645 11,241 (2,596) 130% -30%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 149,393 177,434 (28,041) 119% -19%
CONTRACTUAL 26,542 1,423 25,118 5% 95%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 514,397 139,774 374,622 27% 73%
COST POOLS 64,860 84,419 (19,559) 130% -30%
TOTAL 2,863,000 1,349,638 1,513,362 47% 53%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS
TRAVEL 10,489 2,404 8,085 23% 77%
SUPPLIES 9,158 0 9,158 0% 100%
CONTRACTUAL 9,507 0 9,507 0% 100%
OTHER 18,619 11,948 6,671 64% 36%
TOTAL 47,773 14,352 33,421 30% 70%

GRAND TOTAL EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 3,397,773 50,038 1,596,347 1,751,388 48% 52%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

IN-KIND 727,693 0 727,693 0% 100%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 727,693 0 727,693 0% 100%

Centralized Administrative Cost 5.2%
Program Administrative Cost 17.9%

Total Administrative Cost 23.1%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH010071-01-00.
1 Initial budget period is 7/1/2015 - 1/31/2016 (prorated to 7 months).  Subsequent budget period will be 2/1/2016 - 1/31/2017.
2 Pre-award costs (within start-up funds) obligated between 04/01/2015 - 06/30/2015 are not to exceed $75,000.
Actual expenditures include open purchase orders, unliquidated travel, and estimated pending expenditures accrued through 11/30/15.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - San Joaquin County

Budget to Actual Report

Budget Period:  July 1, 2015 - January 31, 20161

Report Period:  July 1, 2015 - November 30, 2015
Month 5 of 7 (71%)

Pre-Award Budget Period:  April 1, 2015 - June 30, 20152

80



03/01/15- 11/01/15-

10/31/15 11/30/15 TOTAL
BEGINNING BALANCE (NOTE 1) 336,710.16 336,710.16

CASH RECEIPTS

2015 Awards Banquet Donations 103,960.00 103,960.00

Class Action Lawsuit Settlement - Dell 14,514.95 14,514.95

Donations 3,391.44 3,391.44

Interest Income/Union Administrative Fee 685.88 1.74 687.62

TOTAL CASH RECEIPTS 122,552.27 1.74 122,554.01

CASH DISBURSEMENTS

Line of Credit Interest Expense 1,223.96 328.50 b 1,552.46

Line of Credit Unused Commitment Fee 1,790.28 1,790.28

2015 Awards Banquet Expenses 25,576.36 25,576.36

Prior Period Licensing Fees - Head Start 17,140.00 17,140.00

Prior Period Freight Charge - Head Start 2,447.71 2,447.71

Licensing Penalties - Head Start 600.00 600.00

Property Taxes - Campus 0.00 980.90 c 980.90

Fundraising Costs 645.28 645.28

Miscellaneous Expenses 254.41 315.37 569.78

Centralized Cost Pool Allocations 2,383.55 304.29 2,687.84
TOTAL CASH DISBURSEMENTS 52,061.55 1,929.06 53,990.61

CASH PROVIDED (USED) 70,490.72 (1,927.32) 68,563.40

ENDING BALANCE 407,200.88 405,273.56

Discretionary Cash 234,340.48

Fund Raising Cash 169,772.48

404,112.96

Add: Prepaid 1,136.00

Add: A/R 24.60

405,273.56

NOTES
1. For the year ended 2/28/15, the net increase to the Discretionary/Fund Raising Funds was $26,214.

a. As of 10/31/15, net 2015 awards banquet gain is $73,452.20 (@ FYE 2/28/15 = (4,931.44) + 78,383.64 for 

FY 2015/16).

b. Interest expense on operating line of credit advance for $1 million for 1 day.

c. 2015/16 property tax first installment on 2 vacant parcels at the campus location.

Date Prepared: 12/2/15

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

DISCRETIONARY AND FUND RAISING FUNDS

FOR THE MONTH ENDED NOVEMBER 30, 2015

81



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AUDIT & PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North 

December 14, 2015 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Craig Henderson called the meeting to order at 12:00pm at the Community Action 
Partnership of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

 
2. Roll Call 
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 

Present   Absent  
Craig Henderson  Mike Maggard 
Yolanda Ochoa 
Warren Peterson 
Ana Vigil 
 
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; 
Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition Services; Romala Ramkissoon, Director of 
Community Services; Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development; other CAPK 
staff.   
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Audit Committee meeting agenda of 
December 14, 2015.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Peterson) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the Committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. New Business 

 
a. Presentation of the Independent Audit Reports for year ending February 28, 2015 – 

Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item  
 
Christine Anami introduced Andrew Paulden, Partner with Brown Armstrong and Brooke 
Baird, CPA.  Chris stated this is Brown Armstrong’s final year under the current contract.   
 
Andy Paulden stated it has been a great pleasure working with CAPK.  He stated three 
audits were conducted which is the normal audit, the special purpose audit and the 

82



pension plan for 2-28-15 and there are a lot of reports which correspond with the three 
audits.  
 
Brooke Baird stated the entrance meeting took place on April 28th, 2015 which began 
with planning procedures and they tried to keep dates consistent with the prior year.  
They create a timeline in coordination with staff, understand and evaluate internal 
controls through inquiry and observation, conduct interim testing and compliance audits, 
complete the final field work and then present the report.  She stated that Andy will be 
presenting the audit reports to the Board of Directors at the February, 2016 meeting. 
 
Andy stated in the independent auditors report, they are pleased to report a clean 
opinion and the statements are in compliance.  He stated they are required to follow the 
government auditing standards when it comes to government agencies, which requires 
looking at internal controls and laws, and he is pleased to report they did not identify any 
deficiencies and this is a clean report.  For the report on compliance for each major 
program and on internal control over compliance required by OMB Circular A-133, there 
were no internal control deficiencies nor were there instances with non-compliance.  The 
report for First 5 programs and on internal control over compliance with the program 
specific audit option under OMB circular A-133, they are obligated to report any 
deficiencies and there were no such weaknesses or compliance issues.   
 
He stated the outline to the special purpose audit for June 30th, 2015 for state 
compliance issues and he is to render an opinion and they have issued a clean opinion 
and is in accordance with GAP.  The defined contribution pension plan is the smaller of 
the audits that are conducted and he is pleased to inform the committee they have 
issued a clean opinion.  Andy congratulated CAPK on a clean audit. 
 

b. Pension Report by Mutual of America – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item  
 
Shannon Moriarty presented the Pension report to the committee and stated Mutual of 
America provides the following to the agency and employees; plan support services, 
fiduciary support, plan administrator’s checklist for 401(k), and investment services.  
Plan support services provides on-site employee education, 24/7 website access, and 
plan administration support.  Fiduciary support ensures that CAPK is in compliance with 
the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), helps employers satisfy 
fiduciary obligations, protection for plan fiduciaries of ERISA defined contribution plans, 
and ERISA Section 404(c) protection.  The plan administrator’s checklist demonstrates 
the ERISA and fiduciary duties, investment responsibility, protection for plan fiduciaries, 
regulatory compliance, participant communication and education, and an annual 
return/report and plan audit.   
 

c. Update on RFP Audit Procurement Process – Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations – 
Info Item 
 
Christine Anami presented on behalf of Emilio Wagner and stated twelve responses to 
the RFP for Audit services were received and current auditor Brown Armstrong did 
submit a proposal.  An evaluation team, which consisted of Board members, Ana Vigil 
and Mike Maggard along with staff members Carmen Segovia and Donna Holland who 

83



reviewed the proposals and the results are being compiled and summarized.  The plan is 
to take the recommendation for award to the January 14th Audit Committee meeting to 
select an auditor.   
 
Craig Henderson asked out of the twelve RFP’s that were received, how many were 
local and Jeremy Tobias stated about 3-4 were local. 
 

d. September 22, 2015: Annual Administrative Review from California Department of 
Education for the Summer Food Program – Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and 
Nutrition Services – Info Item  
 
Carmen Segovia stated this is the review for the Summer Food program and the visit 
was unannounced.  Overall there were no findings and all review areas are in 
compliance and no response is required.   
 
Craig Henderson asked if breakfast and lunch is served in the program and Carmen 
stated that only lunch is provided. 
 
Craig asked how many meals were served and Carmen stated 7,764 meals were served 
in June and 8,100 meals were served in July. 
 
Craig asked if there is enough food for the children to have seconds and Carmen stated 
that there is. 
 

e. August 18, 2015: Response and Corrective Action to the Department of Community 
Services and Development for 2013 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) and 2013 
Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of 
Family, Youth and Community Services – Info Item  
 
Romala Ramkissoon stated the Department of Community Services and Development 
(CSD) conducted a review of the 2013 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG) and 
the 2013 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP).  CSD did not 
identify any findings but did have some recommendations which may be followed up at 
future visits.  The recommendations were in regards to the cost of microwaves on the 
inventory list, which did not match the cost keyed into the Expenditure Activity Reporting 
System (EARS); the reconciliation of the weatherization inspector’s timesheets; and 
training & technical assistance (T&TA) ensuring costs were charged properly in the 
grant.  She stated CSD has reviewed the programs responses and determined that the 
responses were adequate and they address the recommendations.  CSD considers the 
report to be closed and filed accordingly.   
 

f. September 21, 2015: Close-Out Report from the Department of Community Services 
and Development for 2014 Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) 
(Contract No. 14B-5012) – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth and 
Community Services – Info Item  
 
Romala Ramkissoon stated this letter is to inform LIHEAP that the report is closed and 
the contract has met all its expenditure goals.   

84



 
Craig Henderson asked how many times LIHEAP will pay a client’s utility bill and 
Romala stated the program pays one time every twelve months. 
 

g. October 14, 2015: Close-Out Report from the Department of Community Services and 
Development for 2014 DOE Weatherization Assistance Program (Contract No. 14C-
1812) – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Family, Youth and Community Services –    
Info Item  
 
Romala Ramkissoon stated the Department of Community Services and Development 
(CSD) conducted a review of the 2014 DOE WAP contract.  The contract goals were met 
and production expenditures we completely expended.  There were no issues or finding 
and is considered closed. 
 

6. Committee Member Comments 
  
Warren Peterson thanked the staff for the great job that they do. 
 
Craig Henderson stated that the staff should be congratulated when a review has no 
findings.   
 

7. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Audit Committee Meeting 
Thursday, January 14, 2016  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
8. Adjournment 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 1:32pm. 

 

85



From: Carmen Segovia
To: Amanda Norman
Subject: FW: Summer Food Service Program Administrative Review
Date: Wednesday, September 23, 2015 10:18:02 AM

For your records.

Carmen Segovia
Director of Health & Nutrition
 
Community Action Partnership of Kern
5005 Business Park North
Bakersfield, CA 93309
Office – (661) 336-5236 ext. 1107
csegovia@capk.org
 
 
 

From: Kimberly Bray [mailto:KBray@cde.ca.gov] 
Sent: Tuesday, September 22, 2015 12:15 PM
To: Carmen Segovia <csegovi@capk.org>; Diana Morrison <dmorris@capk.org>
Subject: Administrative Review
 

04096-SFSP-15
Community Action Partnership Of Kern
5005 Business Park North
Bakersfield, CA 93309
Vendor #: Y32000
 
Dear  Ms. Segovia and Ms. Morrison:
 
This letter is in reference to the administrative review performed on your Summer
 Food Service Program for the month of July 2015.
 
The review indicates all review areas are in compliance and no response required.
 Since no further action is required, the California Department of Education has
 closed this review.
 
If you have any questions regarding this letter, please contact me by phone at 916-
327-5404 or by e-mail at kbray@cde.ca.gov.
 
The USDA is an equal opportunity provider and employer
 
Sincerely,
 

Kimberly Bray, Analyst
Program Integrity Unit
Nutrition Services Division
California Department of Education

86

mailto:/O=CONNECT IT/OU=EXCHANGE ADMINISTRATIVE GROUP (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=7A66FD8EFB1248AFAE1D4C199EEC3E0C-CSEGOVI_CAPK
mailto:anorman@capk.org
mailto:kbray@cde.ca.gov


87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

AUDIT & PENSION COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North 

January 14, 2016 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Craig Henderson called the meeting to order at 12:00pm at the Community Action 
Partnership of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

 
2. Roll Call 
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 

Present     Absent  
Craig Henderson    Yolanda Ochoa 
Mike Maggard (arrived at 12:09pm) 
Warren Peterson 
Ana Vigil 
 
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; 
Emilio Wagner, Director of Operations; other CAPK staff.   
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Audit Committee meeting agenda of 
January 14, 2016.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Peterson/Vigil) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the Committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 
 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. New Business 

 
a. Recommendation of Award for Independent Audit Services for the Period March 1, 2015 

to February 28, 2018 – Margaret Palmer, Business Manager – Action Item  
 
Margaret Palmer introduced the staff report and stated on September 30, 2015, a 
Request for Proposal (RFP) was issued seeking proposals for the services of an 
independent certified public accounting firm capable of issuing audit reports in the State 
of California.  RFP’s were due to Business Services by October 29, 2015 and 12 firms 
submitted proposals.  A selection committee consisting of two Board members; Mike 
Maggard and Ana Vigil; and two staff members; Donna Holland and Carmen Segovia, 
reviewed and evaluated the proposals. The proposals were evaluated based on the 

111



following criteria: prior experience auditing a community action agency and/or non-profit 
agency of similar size, scope and complexity; prior experience auditing programs similar 
to those at CAPK financed by Federal, State of California, county and local government 
funds; prior experience auditing Defined Contribution Pension Plans; Auditor’s 
organization, size, structure and capacity; staff qualifications and relevant experience; 
and auditor’s approach to the engagement.  She stated staff is recommending the Audit 
Committee recommend the Board of Directors select Brown Armstrong to perform audit 
services for CAPK for the period March 1, 2015 through February 28, 2018, with two (2) 
one (1) year options to renew.   
 
Mike asked about claims against the firm’s insurance policy and Margaret stated claims 
were not reviewed.  Mike stated he would like for the insurance policies to be 
independently confirm directly with the insurance company rather than with the firm.   
 
Craig Henderson also requested that the firm inform CAPK if their insurance policy 
lapses.   
 
Warren Peterson asked how the pricing compared with the last contract for Brown 
Armstrong to the proposal submitted this year and Christine Anami stated that Brown 
Armstrong came in at the same rate of $81,000 per year, which is the same pricing that 
was approved  in the previous contract. 
 
Warren motioned to approve the recommendation as long as the insurance is verified. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Recommendation of Award for 
Independent Audit Services for the Period March 1, 2015 to February 28, 2018.  Carried 
by unanimous vote.  (Peterson/Vigil) 
 

b. Audit Transmittal Report (TR) 15-003 (FYE 2-28-15) from the Department of Community 
Services and Development – Christine Anami, Director of Finance – Info Item  
 
Christine Anami stated this a routine report that comes from the Department of 
Community Services and Development (CSD) which is the funding source for the 
Community Services Block Grant (CSBG), the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance 
Program (LIHEAP) and the Department of Energy Weatherization Assistance Program 
(DOE WAP).  Each year CSD reviews the contents of the audit report to see if there are 
any findings and match what is given to CSD.  She stated this is just confirming that all 
revenues were expended and they have complied with the states requirements.  This is 
a standard format report and reminds us that we are obligated to have the contracts 
audited. 
 

6. Committee Member Comments 
 
Ana Vigil stated she appreciates seeing employees at meetings in the community. 
 
Warren Peterson stated he is pleased that Brown Armstrong enjoys working with CAPK 
since not raising their rates demonstrates that.   
  

112



7. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Audit Committee Meeting 
Thursday, April 7, 2016  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
8. Adjournment 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:25pm. 

 

113



114



115



116



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

PROGRAM REVIEW & EVALUATION COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA  

January 13, 2016 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Fred Plane called the meeting to order at 12:05pm at the Community Action Partnership of 
Kern administrative building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

 
2. Roll Call  
 

Roll Call was taken with a quorum present: 
 
Present   Absent 
Fred Plane   Kathleen Philley 
Tony Martinez   Charlie Rodriguez 
Craig Henderson   
    
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Ralph Martinez, Director of Community 
Development; Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Community Services; Carmen Segovia, 
Director of Health and Nutrition Services; other CAPK staff. 
 

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Program Review and Evaluation Committee 
Meeting agenda of January 13, 2016.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Henderson/Martinez) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the Committee on items not on the agenda.  Speakers 
are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same topic, the total 
group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before making your 
presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. Unfinished Business 

 
No items were discussed. 
 

6. New Business 
 

a. Funding Request to United Way of Kern County for the Food Bank – Carmen Segovia, 
Director of Health and Nutrition – Info Item 
 
Carmen Segovia stated this funding request is for the Food Bank for $85,000.  The funding 
will be used only for the purchase of food and fresh produce for distribution by the Food 
Bank.   
 
 
 

117



b. Funding Request to Junior League of Bakersfield for the East Kern Family Resource Center 
– Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition – Info Item   
 
Carmen Segovia said this is a new funding request to the Junior League of Bakersfield for 
the East Kern Family Resource Center (EKFRC) for $5,000.  The funds will be used to 
purchase basic need items such as cribs, beds for children, diapers and wipes, infant 
formula, children’s socks and school uniforms and baby-proofing kits for home safety.  The 
fund will also be used for transportation costs, fees and other expenses such as rent 
deposits and other items that are unable to be covered by other funding sources for the 
clients.   
 
Craig Henderson asked if donations are accepted and Carmen stated donations are 
accepted.  However, as space is limited, storage is a problem and they are not able to keep 
a large amount of items on hand. 
 
Tony Martinez asked how the EKFRC finds out if a family is in need.  Carmen stated that 
Department of Health Services will let them know  if a family is in need of help.   
 

c. Funding Request to California Department of Public Health for the Friendship House and 
Shafter Youth Center – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development – Info Item  
 
Kathleen Moessner presented on behalf of Ralph Martinez and stated the funding will help 
expand the Sexual Health and Education (I&E) program that currently operates at the 
Shafter Youth Center.  The program serves youth ages 12 to 19 in Shafter, Bakersfield, 
Lost Hills, Wasco and Delano.  The goal is to provide services in Southeast Bakersfield.  
The request is for $120,000 and will be used to pay for salaries and benefits of two full-time 
health educators, program curriculum, staff travel between locations, incentives, food and 
bus passes for the participants.   
 

d. Funding Request to Cal EITC4Me for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program 
– Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Community Services – Info Item   
 
Romala Ramkissoon stated this request is for $21,000 for the VITA program.  VITA will help 
educate people about the new California State Earned Income Tax Credit (CalEITC).  
Outreach will be conducted at community events, through partner agencies and through 
social media in Bakersfield, McFarlan, Delano and Tehachapi.   
 

e. Application Status Report – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development –        
Info Item 
 
Patricia Mallard presented on behalf of Ralph Martinez and stated two applications; United 
Way of Kern County for the Food Bank in the amount of $85,000 and to CalEITC4ME for 
VITA for $19,000 are pending that were submitted in December 2015.  Five awards were 
received in December; $15,000 from Wells Fargo Foundation for VITA, $25,000 from 
Chevron for the Food Bank, $2,000 from Southern California Gas Company, and two 
contracts from the California Department of Community Services & Development (CSD) for 
Energy and CSBG.  There was one decline from the America Honda Foundation for 
$68,250 for the Friendship House and Shafter Youth Center for the STEM program. 
 

118



Jeremy Tobias wanted to inform the committee, as he was not sure if it was reported at the 
last meeting, the Food Bank received $100,000 from the Bakersfield Californian Foundation 
for the Solar Project. 
 

f. Head Start / State Child Development December Enrollment Update – Jerry Meade, 
Program, Design and Management Administrator – Info Item  
 
Jerry Meade stated the program reached full enrollment for the month of December serving 
2,549 children and families in Kern County for Head Start and Early Head Start.  The Early 
Head Start Partnership is still in the start-up process, however, Bakersfield College is 
currently providing services to 37 children and Blanton is still waiting for  approval of 
licenses.  San Joaquin County continues to see enrollment growth and currently has 286 
children being served.  
 
He stated that the Average Daily Attendance (ADA) for the month of December was great.  
There were seven centers that were at 100%; Alicante, Fairfax, Faith Avenue, Planz, San 
Diego Early Head Start, Vineland, and Voorhies.   
 

g. CACFP Report – Jerry Meade, Program, Design and Management Administrator –         
Info Item  
 
Jerry Meade stated the Central Kitchen provided 65,606 meals and the vendor kitchens 
prepared 7,832 meals for a total of 73,438.  
 

h. Nov – Dec 2015 Outreach & Advocacy Report – Louis Medina, Outreach and Advocacy 
Manager – Info Item  
 
Louis Medina stated that the staff and some members from the Board of Directors attended 
a trip to San Joaquin to take a tour of the facilities on November 16-18, 2015.  On 
November 19th, the Holiday Food Drive was held at KGET for the Food Bank. At the 
Executive Committee meeting, the Teter Architects Engineers Connected organization 
presented a check for $3,333 for the Food Bank.  On December 16, the staff from Wasco 
State Prison distributed toys to the Head Start children in Wasco and Congressman Kevin 
McCarthy made an impromptu visit to the Food Bank on December 30, 2015. 
 

7. Committee Member Comments 
 

Tony Martinez stated he went to the food distribution in Lamont and everyone did a great job.   
 
Craig Henderson stated he looks forward to the upcoming year.   
 
Jeremy Tobias stated there will be Board elections at the upcoming Board meeting and new 
committee assignments will follow. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

119



8. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Program Review & Evaluation 
Wednesday, February 10, 2016  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
The meeting adjourned at 12:53pm. 
 

120



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

PENDING - DECEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF APP FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT 

B&F  MEETING  SUBMISSION REQUESTED

08/12/15 09/03/15 THE HEFFERNAN FOUNDATION FHCC- COMPUTER LAB UPGRADE 7,500$                    

08/12/15 07/21/15 FINISHLINE YOUTH FOUNDATION FHCC YOUTH SPORTS CAMP 5,000$                    

09/23/15 09/15/15 CARE FOR KIDS FOOD BANK (BACKPACK BUDDIES) 10,000$                  

10/21/15 10/20/15 WONDERFUL FOUNDATION SYC- PREP WORKS 49,000$                  

10/28/15 (Board) 10/30/15 CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION FHCC & SYC MARINE STUDIES PROGRAM 15,888$                  

11/18/2015 10/22/15 DOMINION RESOURCES FOOD BANK 2,500$                    

11/18/15 11/17/15 BANK OF THE WEST VITA 1,500$                    

12/9/15 (Exec) 11/24/15 USDA/ NATIONAL INSTITUTE OF FOOD AND AGRICULTURE (NIFA) FOOD BANK : KERN NUTRITION ON WHEELS 329,500$                

12/9/15(Exec) 11/30/15 UNITED WAY OF KERN COUNTY FOOD BANK : COMMUNITY INVESTMENT 25,000$                  
01/20/16 12/03/15 UNITED WAY OF KERN COUNTY FOOD BANK : EMERGENCY FOOD & SHELTER 85,000$                  

01/20/16 12/23/15 CALEITC4ME VITA 19,000$                  

121



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN
APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 
AWARDED - DECEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT AMOUNT FUNDING

B&F  MEETING NOTIFICATION REQUESTED AWARDED PERIOD

06/17/15 06/15/15 PG&E FHCC- COMPUTER LAB UPGRADE 3,000$                3,000$                 07/01/15 – 06/30/16

06/17/15 06/30/15
HHS SUBSTANCE ABUSE PREVENTION AND TREATEMENT 
(SAPT) BLOCK GRANT HIV TESTING AND PREVENTION SERVICES 128,213$            128,213$             07/01/15-06/30/16

06/17/15 07/23/15 USDA WIC (4 yrs) WIC SERVICES 15,967,754$       15,967,754$        10/01/15-09/01/19

08/12/15 09/24/15 TARGET COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT SYC-COMMUNITY GARDEN FENCE 3,000$                2,000$                 10/1/2015-9/30/2016

08/12/15 10/09/15 BANK OF AMERICA 
FOOD BANK COMMUNITY RESOURCE FAIRS AND PROCUREMENT 
OF FRESH PRODUCE 26,000$              6,000$                 1/1/2016-12/31/2016

09/23/15 11/13/15 THE BAKERSFIELD CALIFORNIAN FOUNDATION FOOD BANK (SOLAR PROJECT) 100,000$            100,000$             1/1/2016 -12/31/2016

10/21/15 11/30/15 WELLS FARGO FOUNDATION VITA/YOUR DOLLARS & $ENSE (FINANCIAL EMPOWERMENT) 35,000$              15,000$               1/1/2016-12/31/2016

05/20/15 12/22/15 CHEVRON FOOD BANK: BACKPACK BUDDIES & FHCC: ROBOTICS &STEM 35,000$              25,000$               7/01/2015-6/01/2016

11/18/15 12/28/15 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA GAS CO. FOOD BANK 2,000$                2,000$                 11/14/15

10/21/15 12/31/15

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY SERVICES & 

DEVELOPMENT (CSD) ENERGY (LIHEAP) 8,105,936$         8,105,936$          1/1/2016-1/31/2017

10/21/15 12/31/15

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY SERVICES & 

DEVELOPMENT (CSD) CSBG 1,396,948$         1,396,948$          1/1/2016-1/31/2017

TOTAL 25,751,851$        

122



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

APPLICATION STATUS REPORT 

DECLINED -DECEMBER 2015

DATE OF DATE OF FUNDING  SOURCE PROGRAM/PROPOSAL AMOUNT 

B&F  MEETING NOTIFICATION REQUESTED

06/17/15 10/01/15 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE VITA -2015 - (2016 TAX SEASON) $98,926.00

11/18/2015 12/3/2015 AMERICAN HONDA FOUNDATION FHCC & SYC STEM PROGRAM $68,250.00

123



 
Enrollment and Eligibility 

 

 

+ 

 

Kern County - EHS Partnership 

                                                      Funded enrollment:  56   Enrollment: 37 

 

 

 

 

 

 

San Joaquin County EHS 

Funded Enrollment: 364    Enrollment: 286      
 

 

 

 

 

 

2%

10%

78%

5%
5%

Homeless

Foster

Income Eligible

Over Income

Disability

KERN- Early Head Start

Kern County HS/EHS 

Funded Enrollment: 2539                 Total Kern Enrollment:        2549  
 

     
                                  EHS Enrollment:           331          HS Enrollment:      2218 
 

 
 
 
 

124



 

 

Kern County Average Daily Attendance 

 

 

December 2015 

Top 5 and Bottom 5 

 

1. Alicante  100% 40. Lamont  95.34% 
2. Fairfax   100% 41. Cleo Foran  92.39 % 
3. Faith Avenue  100% 42. Lost Hills  91.86 % 
4. Planz   100% 43. Tehachapi  90.07% 
5. San Diego EHS 100% 44. Franklin  80.65 % 
6. Vineland  100%  
7. Voorhies  100%  

 

 

 

 

97%

88%

99%

85%

98% 98%

Average Daily Attendance

2015-2016

July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June

125



CACFP Report December 2015

by: 

Central                                                            
Kitchen

by: 

Vendor                                                          
Kitchens

Total
Meals 
Prepared

to:

CACFP
to:

HS/EHS
Dec.
2015

Dec. 
2014

65,606 7,832 73,438 50,286 23,152 81% 69%
Adult Meals served 7540

Seconds for Children, Nutritional Experiences, and/or waste  15,612

Total Meals Prepared Meals Allocated

Center Activities Re-Purposed Food Items

Smoothies Yogurt, Strawberries

Fruit Cocktail Apples, Oranges, Peaches

Connections with 
Nature 

Bread, Rolls

Banana Pudding Bananas, Milk

Apple Treats Apples, Cinnamon

% of Meals Served

126



127



128



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP of KERN 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

BUDGET & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA 

January 20, 2016 
12:00 p.m. 

 
 
 
 

1. Call to Order 
 

Garth Corrigan called the meeting to order at 12:01pm at the Community Action Partnership 
of Kern Administrative Building, 5005 Business Park North, Bakersfield, CA. 

 
2. Roll Call 
  

Roll call was taken with a quorum present: 
 

Present   Absent 
Garth Corrigan  Don Bynum 
Warren Peterson 
Yolanda Ochoa 
 
Others present: Jeremy Tobias, Executive Director; Christine Anami, Director of Finance; 
Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Community Services; Ralph Martinez, Director of 
Community Development; Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start/State Child 
Development; Carmen Segovia, Director of Health & Nutrition; other CAPK staff. 
    

3. Approval of Agenda 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Budget & Finance Committee meeting 
agenda for January 20, 2016.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Peterson/Ochoa) 
 

4. Public Forum: (The public may address the committee on items not on the agenda.  
Speakers are limited to 3 minutes.  If more than one person wishes to address the same 
topic, the total group time for the topic will be 10 minutes.  Please state your name before 
making your presentation.) 

 
No one addressed the Committee. 

 
5. New Business 

 
a. Food Bank Solar Project Update – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development 

– Info Item  
 
Ralph Martinez stated last year in November, the agency was notified that the Food 
Bank was awarded $100,000 from the Bakersfield Californian Foundation for the solar 
project.  With the dual $132,500 that was provided by each the City of Bakersfield and 
County of Kern from CDBG funding, the total funding available for the solar project is 
now $365,000. 
 

129



He stated he was informed that the City and County are still negotiating how to jointly 
proceed and they are waiting on an environmental assessment for the project.  The City 
feels that the project will qualify under one of the exemption options and is waiting for an 
agreement from the County.  Once an agreement has been made, the scope of work will 
be shared for review.  He stated this information was also presented to the Executive 
Committee in December. 
 
Warren asked how much the $365,000 will cover and Ralph stated that he believes the 
amount they have is enough to cover about 80% of the current electrical needs at the 
Food Bank, but that will depend on the bids that are received for the project.  Jeremy 
Tobias stated that we will design and install as much solar as possible with the funds 
available. He anticipates it will be somewhere between 80% and 100% of the total 
electrical needs of the facility. But it is a best guess until we receive the bids. .   
 

b. Funding Request to United Way of Kern County for the Food Bank – Carmen Segovia, 
Director of Health and Nutrition – Action Item  
 
Carmen Segovia stated this is a re-application for the Food bank with United Way for the 
Emergency Food and Shelter Program (EFSP).  The $85,000 will be used toward the 
purchase of food and fresh produce for distribution to low-income, food insecure 
residents of Kern County. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to United Way of Kern 
County for the Food Bank.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Peterson)  
 

c. Funding Request to Junior League of Bakersfield for the East Kern Family Resource 
Center – Carmen Segovia, Director of Health and Nutrition – Action Item   
 
Carmen Segovia stated this is a new application for the East Kern Family Resource 
(EKFR) center in the requested amount of $5,000 to the Junior League of Bakersfield.  
The funds will be used for basic need items for their clients such as cribs, beds for 
children, diapers and wipes, infant formula, children’s socks and school uniforms, and 
baby-proofing kits for home safety.  The funds will also be used to help clients with 
transportation costs, fees and other expenses such as rent deposits, and other items not 
covered by other funding sources.   
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to Junior League of 
Bakersfield for the East Kern Family Resource Center.  Carried by unanimous vote.  
(Ochoa/Peterson)  
 

d. Funding Request to California Department of Public Health for the Friendship House and 
Shafter Youth Center – Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development –       
Action Item  
 
Kathleen Moessner presented on behalf of Ralph Martinez and stated this is a request to 
the California Department of Public Health for $120,000.  This is for the Sexual Health 
Information and Education (E&I) program that currently operates at the Shafter Youth 
center and they will expand the program to the Friendship House.     
 

130



Garth Corrigan asked if this was the same amount that was received last time and she 
stated it was not as $70,000 was received last year. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to California 
Department of Public Health for the Friendship House and Shafter Youth Center.  
Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Peterson)  
 

e. Funding Request to CalEITC4Me for the Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) 
program – Romala Ramkissoon, Director of Community Services – Action Item   
 
Romala Ramkissoon stated in December, VITA was contacted to apply for the funding 
and this is the first year California is making tax credit available. This tax credit targets 
low-income people and the funding will be used to conduct outreach within the 
community.  She stated Saturday she received an email notifying her that VITA will 
receive $18,000. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Funding Request to CalEITC4Me for the 
Volunteer Income Tax Assistance (VITA) program.  Carried by unanimous vote.  
(Ochoa/Peterson)  
 

f. 2016 Community Services Block Grant (CSBG Contract# 16F-5015) Budget – Christine 
Anami, Director of Finance – Action Item  
 
Christine Anami stated at the October Board meeting, a resolution was presented and 
accepted to approve the CSBG Contract for 2016 but the CSBG budget was not 
finalized.  For 2016, it is estimated that 35.3% of the contract will be used for centralized 
administrative costs and 64.7% of the contract will be used for programs, such as Food 
Bank, VITA, and the youth centers that have anticipated funding gaps.  She stated that 
seven year comparison of the budget shows that from 2016 to 2016, the contract 
amount has increased 13.5% or $166,513. 
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the 2016 Community Services Block Grant 
(CSBG Contract# 16F-5015) Budget.  Carried by unanimous vote.  (Peterson/Ochoa)  
 

g. Application Status Report - Ralph Martinez, Director of Community Development –    
Info Item  

 
Patricia Mallard stated 2 grant applications; United Way of Kern County for the Food 
Bank and CalEITC4Me for VITA, are pending.  Five awards were received; $15,000 from 
Wells Fargo Foundation for VITA, $25,000 from Chevron for the Food Bank, $2,000 from 
Southern California Gas Co. for the Food Bank, $8,105,936 from the California 
Department of Community Services and Development for the Energy Program, and 
$1,396,948 from CSD for the Community Services Block Grant (CSBG).   

 
h. Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual for the Period Ending December 31, 

2015 – Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager – Info Item  
 
Donna Holland stated for Early Head Start and Head Start for Kern, the program has 
closely been monitoring the grants to ensure sufficient savings are available to cover the 
cost of the interest rate swap agreement termination fee.  For personnel and fringe, 

131



expenditures are less than expected at this point in the fiscal year.  The equipment funds 
that were budgeted for vehicle purchases will be deferred until staff are certain that 
savings are sufficient to cover the cost of the swap agreement breakage.   She stated 
the non-federal share is at 83% of the budget and in-kin is at 90% of budget.  The five 
centers with the highest of percentage of goals met are San Diego, Stella Hills, Taft, 
Franklin, and Casa Loma.  The five centers with the lowest percentage of the goal met 
was Buttonwillow, Shafter, Willow, Tehachapi, and Rosamond.   
 
Donna stated for the Early Head Start partnership grant, Bakersfield College is served 
37 children in the month of December.  The Blanton Child Development Center 
submitted an application in November and as the fire inspection has been completed, 
they are just waiting on receiving the license.  The remaining startup funds are being 
used primarily on classroom supplies.  In the base funds, the expenditures in personal 
and fringe benefits are less than planned at this time of the year.  They expect to fully 
expend the training and technical assistance funds.  She stated both child care partners 
receive non-federal funds for services to children.  As children are enrolled, these funds 
may be used to meet the non-federal share requirement.  As services are beginning later 
than planned, it may be necessary to request a partial waiver of non-federal share for 
the initial project period.   

 
Donna stated San Joaquin County has 267 children receiving services; 109 children are 
in the home-based program option, 98 children are being served temporarily via home 
based services in anticipation of center being licensed and operational, and 60 children 
are in a center-based setting at California Street, St. Mary’s and Walnut.    
 
She stated as the program is 6 months into the 7 month period of the funding, there are 
significant savings in personnel, fringe benefits, contractual, and other categories.  A 
portion of these saving will be used to offset expenditures in other categories.  Funds in 
Training & Technical Assistance will be fully expended.  She stated for non-federal, a 
partial waiver was requested and received with the programs initial funding award, 
however, as of this morning staff has determined there is $6,300 in in-kind for San 
Joaquin County.  Staff have requested a waiver of the administrative cost limitation from 
the Office of Head Start for this budget period.   
 

6. Finance Director Report 
 

a. Discretionary Fund Update – Info Item  
 

Christine Anami stated that for the month of December, $1,500 has been received for 
the 2016 Humanitarian Awards banquet.  However, as outreach expenses have 
occurred, the banquet’s net gain is $364.  We did borrow on the line of credit for one day 
and were charged $110.92 in interest expense.  An item that caused an excess cost was 
in regards to Head Start maintenance employees who worked on a holiday and were not 
compensated at the 1.5 times the hourly rate per the Union agreement in prior years.  As 
the situation happened in 2015, the discretionary fund was used to compensate those 
employees for a total amount of $2425.43.  Other than that there were no other unusual 
charges.   

 
 
 

132



b. Financial Statements, December 2015 – Action Item  
 
Christine Anami stated on the line of credit advances and repayments summary, 
demonstrates when the line of credit was used and a summary of the commitment fee 
paid for not using the line of credit.  They just renewed the line of credit with Wells Fargo 
until January 15, 2017 and the terms did not change and is renewed every year.   
 
The overall cash summary shows there was a positive amount of $14,517.36 in the 
bottom subcategory, with a total operating cash amount of $1,732,457.25. The agency 
credit card bank statements had no unusual activity and most transactions are travel 
related expenses.  On the child and adult care food program (CACFP) statement of 
operations shows the excess costs is $476,913 and they continue to stay around 80% 
for the percentage claimed.  The earned revenue for the State Department of Education 
Contracts for Head Start is achieving revenue at 46% and the Migrant Alternative 
payment has earned 42% of the revenue.  The agency financial statements shows the 
ending net assets is $11 million and we always want to exceed $10.5 million due to 
particular loan agreements.  She stated there were no new grants added to the financial 
statements.  
 
Motion was made and seconded to approve the Financial Statements, December 2015.  
Carried by unanimous vote.  (Ochoa/Peterson)   
 

7. Committee Member Comments 
 

Yolanda Ochoa wanted to address some issues and concerns that were taking place at the 
distribution sites in Lake Isabella.  Carmen Segovia and Glenn Ephrom followed up with 
Yolanda after the meeting concluded.   

 
8. Next Scheduled Meeting 
 

Budget & Finance Committee Meeting 
Wednesday, February 17, 2016  
12:00 p.m. 
5005 Business Park North 
Bakersfield, California 93309 

 
9. Adjournment 

 
The meeting was adjourned at 12:50pm. 
 

133



134



135



2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

Administrative Costs 74.20% 75.40% 65.10% 48.40% 53.40% 41.80% 35.30%

Program Costs 25.80% 24.60% 34.90% 51.60% 46.60% 58.20% 64.70%

100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%

Funding Amount 1,230,435 1,230,435 1,196,355 1,366,988 1,384,531 1,396,948 1,396,948

Increase (Decrease) 0 (34,080) 170,633 17,543 12,417 0

% Increase from 

        2010 to 2016 13.53%

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG)

SEVEN YEAR BUDGET COMPARISON

136



Combined

Program Name Labor Operating Total % Labor Operating Total % Costs %

Food Bank 339,247 339,247 37.5% 103,180 81,563 184,743 37.5% 523,990 37.5%

Friendship House 89,344 115,800 205,144 22.7% 36,850 29,130 65,980 13.4% 271,124 19.4%

VITA 122,309 53,600 175,909 19.4% 12,060 9,533 21,593 4.4% 197,502 14.1%

Shafter Youth Ctr 78,610 65,200 143,810 15.9% 24,790 19,596 44,386 9.0% 188,196 13.5%

Migrant Alternative Payment 33,500 26,481 59,981 12.2% 59,981 4.3%

211 40,352 40,352 4.5% 40,352 2.9%

WIC 20,100 15,889 35,989 7.3% 35,989 2.6%

East Kern Family Resource Ctr 19,430 15,359 34,789 7.1% 34,789 2.5%

CSBG 19,611 6,219 25,830 5.2% 25,830 1.8%

Substance Abuse 10,720 8,475 19,195 3.9% 19,195 1.4%

Totals 669,862 234,600 904,462 100.0% 280,241 212,245 492,486 100.0% 1,396,948 100.0%

% 74.1% 25.9% 100.0% 56.9% 43.1% 100.0%

% Program vs Administrative 64.7% 35.3% 100.0%

1. Labor is salaries and fringe benefits.  Fringe benefits was budgeted at 22% for administrative salaries and at 28% for program salaries.

2. Operating costs include out-of-state and in state travel costs, space costs including rent, repair/maintenance, security and general liability insurance,

     janitorial and gardening services, utilities (electric, gas, water, garbage and communication), vehicle repair/maintenance, supplies including office,

     janitorial, publications, printing and postage, membership dues, employee recruitment costs, cloud computer support, audit fees, ADP payroll service

     fees, conference registration fees, board costs and bank service fees.

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

2016 CSBG BUDGET BY PROGRAM

Program Costs Administrative Costs

137



Position Title 2013 2014 2015 2016

ADMINISTRATIVE POSITIONS

Executive Director X

Director of Finance X X X X

Director of Human Resources X X X

Director of Operations X

Director of Community Development X

Director of Planning, Research & Development X X X

Director of Health & Nutrition X X X X

Director of Community Services X

Director of Family, Youth & Community X X X 7

Assistant to the Executive Director X

Receptionist X 2

Assistant Director of Finance X X X X

Accountant II X X

Accountant 2 X X X

Accounting Manager X X

General Ledger Supervisor X X

Accounting Technician 4.5 6 6 6

Accounting Clerk X X X X 11

Human Resources Manager X X X

Payroll/Human Resources Information Systems Manager X X

Human Resources Generalist/Recruiting Supervisor X X

Human Resources Benefits Specialist X X X

Human Resources Payroll Specialist 2 2

Human Resources Specialist X

Human Resources Technician X X 2 8

Business Manager X X X

Business Technician X X

Procurement/Contract Specialist X

Buyer 2 X

Contracts/Leases Technician X

Technology Services Manager X X

Information Technology Specialist II X X

Information Technology Specialist X X

Facility Manager X X

Facility Inspector X X

Risk Management Supervisor X X

Safety & Administrative Specialist X

Operations Clerical Technician X 9

Grant & Research  Supervisor X X

Administrative Analyst 3 3 2 2

Research & Administrative Assistant X X X X

Outreach & Advocacy Manager X X

Resource & Outreach Coordinator X X

Resource & Outreach Development Manager X X

Outreach Specialist X X 6

TOTAL 22.5 29 37 43

PROGRAM POSITIONS

Program Manager - 211 X

Supervisor - 211 X

Information & Referral Specialist X 2 X 2

Program Manager - VITA X X X X

Site Coordinator - VITA X X X 2

Administrative Assistant - VITA 3 6

Program Manager - Friendship House X X X X

Program Manager - Shafter Youth Center X X X X

Activities Specialist 2 2 6 5 7

Program Manager - Food Bank X X X X

Agency Relations Technician - Food Bank X X X

Outreach Specialist - Food Bank X X X X

Food Sourcer - Food Bank X X X

Lead Administrative Clerk - Food Bank X X X X

Administrative Clerk - Food Bank 2 2 2 2

Operations Supervisor - Food Bank X X X X

Lead Warehouse Specialist - Food Bank X X X X

Warehouse Specialist - Food Bank 4 5 5 5

Driver - Food Bank X X X 2 16

TOTAL 20 21 27 31

TOTAL POSITIONS 42.5 50 64 74

Position and/or title no longer in use

COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN

COMMUNITY SERVICES BLOCK GRANT (CSBG)

FOUR YEAR COMPARISON OF POSITIONS IN BUDGET

138



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Budget & Finance Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

Agenda Item 5h: Kern Head Start and Early Head Start Budget to Actual 

for the Period Ending December 31, 2015 

January 20, 2015 

The following are highlights of the Head Start/Early Head Start Budget to Actual Report for the 
period March 1, 2015 through December 31, 2015. 

Staff are closely monitoring and, when possible, deferring expenditures of Head Start/Early 
Head Start funds to ensure that sufficient savings are available to cover the cost of the interest 
rate swap agreement breakage fee as part of the pending refinance of the Pete H. 
Parra/Campus loan. 

Personnel & Fringe Benefits 
Expenditures are less than expected at this point in the fiscal year; however, an additional 11 
days of salaries and fringe benefits to be paid on the first pay day of March 2016 will accrue to 
the fiscal year ending February 29, 2016.  Savings are expected in Early Head Start. 

Equipment 
The Head Start funds in this category were budgeted for the purchase of four program vehicles 
and one playground/shade structure.  These purchases will be deferred until staff are certain 
that savings are sufficient to cover the cost of the interest rate swap agreement breakage fee.  

Supplies 
With the exception of day-to-day and health and safety requirements, purchases of supplies 
will be deferred to the next fiscal year. 

Cost Pools 
Expenditures in Head Start are close to budget at this point in the year.  Expenditures in Early 
Head Start are at 100% of budget at 83% of the year elapsed. 

Training & Technical Assistance 
Staff expect to fully expend these funds by fiscal year-end. 

Non-Federal Share 
With 83% of the budget period elapsed, total Non-Federal Share (the sum of California 
Department of Education funding and in-kind) is at 90% of budget. 

139



• California Department of Education
Estimated non-federal revenues through December 31 are at 90% of budget.

• In-Kind
Year-to-date in-kind is at 90% of budget.

Funded enrollments, on which in-kind goals are based, changed effective September 1. 
Funded enrollments were adjusted to reflect six months at the old enrollment and six months at 
the new enrollment, thus changing the goal for some centers.  These are indicated in bold type 
on the report. 

The five centers with the highest percentage of goal met were San Diego, Stella Hills, Taft, 
Franklin, and Casa Loma.  Twenty-seven centers met or exceeded 83% of goal.  

The five centers with the lowest percentage of goal met were Buttonwillow, Shafter, Willow, 
Tehachapi, and Rosamond. 

Staff expect to exceed the required Non-Federal Share by year-end. 

140



Prepared 01/12/2016

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 

REMAINING
PERSONNEL 9,569,855 7,536,989 2,032,866 79% 21% 1,753,281 1,158,217 595,064 66% 34%
FRINGE BENEFITS 3,208,147 2,507,833 700,314 78% 22% 529,404 392,384 137,020 74% 26%
TRAVEL 0 0 0 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 190,000 0 190,000 0% 100% 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 1,214,513 1,136,637 77,876 94% 6% 164,666 221,895 (57,229) 135% -35%
CONTRACTUAL 97,900 50,073 47,827 51% 49% 9,100 5,391 3,709 59% 41%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0 0 0
OTHER 3,810,864 3,075,348 735,516 81% 19% 497,718 501,348 (3,630) 101% -1%
COST POOLS 1,434,915 1,150,550 284,365 80% 20% 339,214 339,805 (591) 100% 0%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 19,526,194 15,457,430 4,068,764 79% 21% 3,293,383 2,619,039 674,344 80% 20%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE
TRAVEL 59,036 48,000 11,036 81% 19% 17,446 11,068 6,378 63% 37%
SUPPLIES 21,544 8,282 13,262 38% 62% 12,372 1,445 10,927 12% 88%
CONTRACTUAL 18,655 14,404 4,251 77% 23% 9,019 996 8,023 11% 89%
OTHER 60,784 89,302 (28,518) 147% -47% 43,498 14,387 29,111 33% 67%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 160,019 159,989 30 100% 0% 82,335 27,897 54,438.30 34% 66%

GRAND TOTAL HS/EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 19,686,213 15,617,418 4,068,795 79% 21% 3,375,718 2,646,936 728,782 78% 22%

BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

2,827,514 2,538,299 289,215 90% 10% Centralized Administrative Cost 6.4%

2,937,969 2,629,688 308,281 90% 10% Program Administrative Cost 6.6%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL 5,765,483 5,167,987 597,496 90% 10% Total Administrative Cost 12.9%

CURRENT 1 TO 30 31 TO 60 61 TO 90 OVER 90 CREDITS TOTAL
Bank of America* 10,306 10,306
Lowe's 2,511 1,009 146 108 3,774
Save Mart 1,380 1,380
Smart & Final 0 0
Chevron & Texaco Business Card 5,248 5,248
Home Depot 3,779 502 200 4,481

23,225 1,511 346 108 0 25,189

* Expenditure details are included in the CAPK Financial Report

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH9142/02, Amendment #2 (conversion of HS to EHS slots).
Actual expenditures include open purchase orders, unliquidated travel, estimated pending expenditures, estimated HS & EHS share of CACFP, General Child Care, State Preschool, 
    and central administration (Cost Pools) costs accrued through 12/31/15.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 - February 29, 2016
Report Period:  March 1, 2015 -December 31, 2015

HEAD START EARLY HEAD START

Month 10 of 12 (83%)

SOURCE

EARLY HEAD STARTHEAD START

Community Action Partnership of Kern Agency-Wide Credit Card Report

CALIF DEPT OF ED

IN-KIND

HEAD START and EARLY HEAD START NON-FEDERAL SHARE**

No activity

STATEMENT DATE
12/21/2015

1/5/2016
1/5/2016

12/25/2015
12/27/2015

141



Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 through February 29, 2016
Report for period ending December 31, 2015 (Month 10 of 12)

Percent of year elapsed: 83%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

San Diego Street 56 13,628 18,345 15,681 12,239 11,789 12,406 11,576 12,459 3,071 367 111,561 63,749 175%
Stella Hills 34 11,985 12,686 11,211 0 0 4,700 11,842 4,421 0 5,873 62,717 38,705 162%
Taft 34 8,675 10,101 6,974 0 0 3,618 10,694 10,511 4,695 6,558 61,826 38,705 160%
Franklin 24 5,621 6,304 5,376 5,486 4,740 5,369 5,222 3,594 34 1,072 42,817 27,321 157%
Casa Loma 34 7,602 6,812 5,438 0 0 3,825 10,608 11,517 5,335 8,276 59,414 38,705 154%
Roosevelt 34 8,921 9,673 9,774 0 0 2,599 6,092 6,929 6,751 6,053 56,793 38,705 147%
Lost Hills 27 10,236 10,456 9,936 0 0 2,165 3,670 4,452 0 3,252 44,167 30,736 144%
Alicante 34 9,784 9,082 7,761 0 0 1,687 7,890 8,870 3,891 5,297 54,263 38,705 140%
Voorhies 34 8,202 7,788 9,297 0 0 886 9,065 9,573 4,343 4,365 53,519 38,705 138%
Planz 34 9,564 9,359 7,395 0 0 2,571 8,017 8,227 0 6,002 51,134 38,705 132%
Fairfax 34 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 14,915 17,686 18,242 50,843 38,705 131%
Noble 34 5,392 5,629 4,063 0 0 3,486 10,139 10,724 0 7,927 47,361 38,705 122%
Delano 97 15,798 20,136 19,254 12,110 9,134 15,471 19,398 16,818 3,108 618 131,845 110,422 119%
Oildale 34 3,672 3,607 2,805 0 0 2,513 10,954 10,593 0 10,971 45,114 38,705 117%
Rafer Johnson 34 7,730 7,535 6,457 0 0 1,991 6,232 7,196 3,927 3,197 44,265 38,705 114%
Williams 34 5,245 7,331 5,133 0 0 2,595 3,056 10,311 5,123 5,362 44,155 38,705 114%
Wasco 34 9,476 9,992 7,719 0 0 2,417 5,688 6,071 0 1,696 43,058 38,705 111%
Virginia 34 5,206 5,554 4,205 0 0 2,447 6,996 9,398 4,639 4,317 42,763 38,705 110%
Cleo Foran 34 6,061 4,299 6,002 0 0 3,015 9,812 9,700 3,366 0 42,255 38,705 109%
Faith Avenue 34 7,401 7,518 5,013 0 0 2,989 6,913 9,822 0 360 40,015 38,705 103%
Stine Road 147 20,211 24,077 20,846 13,898 12,110 13,977 17,207 16,987 13,589 12,571 165,474 167,341 99%
Martha J. Morgan 83 17,450 19,719 19,540 0 0 3,377 9,955 11,712 1,877 9,057 92,686 94,485 98%
Primeros Pasos 98 16,777 18,332 15,992 6,089 0 4,953 12,868 15,642 4,237 6,982 101,873 111,561 91%
Fairview 34 4,002 1,450 3,961 0 0 1,771 7,721 9,028 5,991 1,031 34,955 38,705 90%
McFarland 34 8,173 8,012 5,700 0 0 102 6,255 5,713 0 112 34,065 38,705 88%
Shafter HS/EHS 38 5,475 5,936 5,260 4,961 3,215 3,505 3,265 3,563 0 1,855 37,034 43,258 86%
Sterling 124 18,929 19,993 16,490 12,104 9,845 7,765 15,138 13,881 0 6,514 120,659 141,158 85%
Vineland 34 7,921 5,941 4,774 0 0 2,183 4,553 4,502 161 1,294 31,329 38,705 81%
Home Base 297 18,924 20,965 15,839 7,064 8,603 9,485 15,352 23,134 5,801 10,745 135,912 169,048 80%
Pacific 66 10,174 10,309 8,322 4,074 5,323 3,069 7,334 7,751 2,912 846 60,113 75,133 80%
East California 84 16,014 16,961 12,837 0 0 3,868 7,723 9,283 3,871 5,738 76,294 95,623 80%
Alberta Dillard 68 9,303 9,883 11,545 0 0 2,294 6,787 10,224 6,279 4,374 60,689 77,409 78%
Pete H. Parra 148 17,755 16,377 14,269 12,442 11,938 9,307 16,187 15,781 8,676 8,825 131,555 168,479 78%
Heritage Park 34 2,780 3,086 7,522 0 0 2,047 4,877 4,838 2,623 2,202 29,976 38,705 77%
Lamont 34 3,606 3,570 2,519 0 0 2,181 6,616 6,333 0 3,446 28,271 38,705 73%
Sunrise Villa 34 5,487 6,541 5,517 0 0 1,115 3,090 4,667 295 201 26,913 38,705 70%
Pioneer 34 3,522 3,596 2,262 0 0 599 2,625 4,436 4,382 2,914 24,337 38,705 63%
Mojave 34 5,184 5,258 4,705 0 0 1,001 1,572 2,136 2,073 1,076 23,004 38,705 59%
Oasis 93 12,581 12,995 8,784 0 0 4,281 9,933 11,392 0 2,302 62,267 105,869 59%
Seibert 34 3,597 3,122 3,628 0 0 1,686 6,783 1,364 0 1,649 21,827 38,705 56%
California City 34 4,010 3,252 2,269 0 0 1,810 1,890 5,330 0 3,076 21,637 38,705 56%

142



Community Action Partnership of Kern
Head Start and Early Head Start
Non-Federal Share and In-Kind
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 through February 29, 2016
Report for period ending December 31, 2015 (Month 10 of 12)

Percent of year elapsed: 83%

LOCATION

FUNDED 
ENROLL-

MENT March April May June July Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec
YTD 

Totals
IN-KIND 
GOAL

% OF 
GOAL 
MET

Buttonwillow 27 2,057 2,633 898 0 0 963 3,263 3,046 1,720 1,338 15,920 30,736 52%
Shafter 34 2,305 4,409 3,352 0 0 1,108 3,492 4,130 251 701 19,748 38,705 51%
Willow 102 9,416 7,071 4,621 0 0 3,030 9,351 15,649 2,838 1,117 53,092 116,114 46%
Tehachapi 34 1,490 1,428 435 0 0 722 2,537 2,063 0 0 8,674 38,705 22%
Rosamond 34 4,478 2,958 903 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,338 38,705 22%
Administrative Services 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 NA
Program Services 6,013 9,308 7,708 6,718 4,229 6,660 4,349 5,138 4,476 4,176 58,774 115,672 51%
Policy Council and RPC 1,854 2,442 769 659 599 336 634 3,020 2,501 0 12,814 64,472 20%
Board of Directors 639 781 142 12 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,575 6,945 23%
SUBTOTAL IN-KIND 2,565 400,325 422,610 360,904 97,856 81,524 169,942 355,217 406,843 140,524 193,943 2,629,688 2,937,969 90%

State General Child Care* 94,459 94,824 84,367 89,643 83,057 73,725 87,080 101,404 77,907 86,564 873,028 922,078 95%
State Preschool* 158,096 151,335 143,311 135,077 164,012 127,767 155,076 166,275 134,466 149,406 1,484,820 1,767,277 84%
State Migrant Child Care* 15,519 15,636 13,813 15,069 21,353 20,713 25,347 24,272 13,608 15,120 180,450 138,159 131%
SUBTOTAL CA DEPT of ED 268,073 261,796 241,490 239,789 268,421 222,205 267,502 291,951 225,981 251,090 2,538,299 2,827,514 90%

GRAND TOTAL 668,398 684,406 602,394 337,645 349,945 392,147 622,719 698,794 366,505 445,033 5,167,987 5,765,483 90%
*May include estimates

143



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Budget & Finance Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

Agenda Item 5h: Early Head Start – Child Care Partnerships 

Budget to Actual for the Period Ending December 31, 2015 

January 20, 2015 

CAPK is in its first year of implementing the Early Head Start – Child Care Partnerships 
program.  The initial budget period is March 1, 2015 through August 31, 2016; the initial 
funding was awarded through February 29, 2016.  The following are highlights of the Budget to 
Actual Report for the period March 1, 2015 through November 31, 2015. 

Program Update 
• Bakersfield College served 37 children during the month of December.  The funded

enrollment at this location is 40 children. 
• Blanton Child Development Center – the application for a facility license was submitted in

November to California Department of Social Services, Community Care Licensing.  The 
fire inspection has been completed, which is a pre-requisite to receiving a facility license. 
Services are planned to begin in late January 2016.  The funded enrollment at this location 
is 16 children. 

Start-Up Funds 
The start-up budget includes the costs of a vehicle, start-up classroom and office supplies, 
printing, licensing, and hiring costs.  Actual expenditures also included the cost of out-of-
county travel for the purpose of obtaining training and orientation provided by the Office of 
Head Start.  Staff will procure the vehicle prior to fiscal year-end.  The remainder of the start-
up funds will be expended primarily on classroom supplies. 

Base Funds 
Expenditures in Personnel and Fringe Benefits are less than planned for this point in the fiscal 
year.  Savings are expected in these categories. 

The child care partners are paid for providing Early Head Start services from the Contractual 
category.  Because services began later than initially planned, savings in this category are 
expected.  Staff are in the process of evaluating the best use of these savings, and will submit 
a budget revision if required by the funding source. 

Training & Technical Assistance Funds 
Staff expect to fully expend Training & Technical Assistance funds. 

144



Non-Federal Share 
Both child care partners receive non-federal funds for services to children.  As children are 
enrolled in Early Head Start, these funds may be used to meet the non-federal share 
requirement.  Because services are beginning later than planned, it may be necessary to 
request a partial waiver of non-federal share for the initial project period.  Staff are working with 
its child care partners to determine an effective and efficient method to document the non-
federal share. 

Administrative Cost 
Administrative costs for Head Start and Early Head Start programs are limited to 15% of total 
expenditures.  The administrative cost reported through November is 12.8%, which is a 
decrease from the 14.6% reported through October.  Higher than normal administrative costs 
are expected during the implementation phase of the project, but have been trending 
downward; thus, it may not be necessary to request a waiver of the administrative cost 
limitation for the initial project period. 

• June 84.6% 
• July 62.8% 
• August 58.8% 
• September 27.0%
• October 14.6% 
• November 12.8%
• December 12.1%

145



Prepared 01/12/2016

START-UP FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

PERSONNEL 0 0 0
FRINGE BENEFITS 0 0 0
TRAVEL 0 4,841 (4,841)
EQUIPMENT 30,000 0 30,000 0% 100%
SUPPLIES 91,656 29,054 62,602 32% 68%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 17,750 489 17,261 3% 97%
COST POOLS 0 0 0
TOTAL START-UP FUNDING 139,406 34,385 105,021 25% 75%

BASE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

PERSONNEL 107,407 47,756 59,651 44% 56%
FRINGE BENEFITS 38,236 13,820 24,416 36% 64%
TRAVEL 0 0 0
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 11,290 14,134 (2,844) 125% -25%
CONTRACTUAL 480,451 96,728 383,723 20% 80%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 33,660 2,579 31,081 8% 92%
COST POOLS 956 4,880 (3,924) 510% -410%
TOTAL BASE FUNDING 672,000 179,896 492,104 27% 73%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

TRAVEL 0 4,051 (4,051)
SUPPLIES 3,506 0 3,506 0% 100%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0
OTHER 13,294 2,118 11,177 16% 84%
TOTAL TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE 16,800 6,168 10,632 37% 63%

GRAND TOTAL FEDERAL FUNDS 828,206 220,449 607,757 27% 73%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

IN-KIND 207,052 0 207,052 0% 100%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 207,052 0 207,052 0% 100%

Centralized Administrative Cost 2.2%
Program Administrative Cost 9.9%

Total Administrative Cost 12.1%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09HP0036/01.
The initial grant action for the first 18 month budget period includes 12 months of operating (base) funding, a portion of T&TA funding,
    and start-up funds.  The remaining operating funds ($336,000) and T&TA funds ($84,000) will be awarded at a later date.  The initial
    budget period is 3/1/2015 - 8/31/2016.  The remaining budget periods will begin September 1 and end August 31.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - Child Care Partnerships

Budget to Actual Report
Budget Period:  March 1, 2015 - February 29, 2016
Report Period:  March 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015

Month 10 of 12 (83%)

146



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
MEMORANDUM 

To: Budget & Finance Committee 

From: 

Subject: 

Date: 

Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager 

Agenda Item 5h: Early Head Start – San Joaquin County 

Budget to Actual for the Period Ending December 31, 2015 

January 20, 2015 

CAPK is in its first year of implementing the Early Head Start – San Joaquin County program.  
The following are highlights of the Budget to Actual Report for the period July 1, 2015 through 
December 31, 2015. 

Program Update 
At this time, 267 children (out of the funded enrollment of 364) are receiving services: 

• 109 are enrolled in the home-based program option;
• 98 children are being served temporarily via home based services in anticipation of

centers being licensed and operational;
• 60 children are being served in center-based settings:

o California Street (Stockton) – 24 children
o St. Mary’s (Stockton) – 16 children
o Walnut (Manteca) – 20 children

Tracy Toddlers (Tracy) had a successful licensing visit in late December and anticipates 
opening its doors to 8 children in late January. 

Start-Up Funds 
Remaining start-up funds will be expended for facility repairs, maintenance, and minor health 
and safety improvements. 

Base Funds 
At six months into the initial seven-month budget period, there are significant savings in the 
Personnel, Fringe Benefits, Contractual, and Other categories.  A portion of these savings will 
be used to offset expenditures in other categories; a request to approve remaining facility 
projects has been submitted to Office of Head Start in preparation for submission of the 
request to carry over remaining funds into the next budget period. 

Training & Technical Assistance Funds 
Staff expect to fully expend these funds prior to the end of the budget period. 

147



Non-Federal Share 
CAPK requested and received a partial waiver of non-federal share with its initial funding 
award.  San Joaquin staff are in the process of implementing in-kind procedures in line with 
those used by CAPK.  As centers begin services to children, parent and community volunteers 
will be given opportunities to provide volunteer services.  Because services have begun later 
than planned, staff have requested a waiver of the remaining non-federal share from Office of 
Head Start for this budget period. 

Administrative Cost 
Administrative costs for Head Start and Early Head Start programs are limited to 15% of total 
expenditures.  Administrative cost reported through December is 22.3%, which is a decrease 
from the 23.1% reported through November.  Higher than normal administrative costs are 
expected during the implementation phase of the project, but have been trending downward: 

• July 39.6% 
• August 40.7% 
• September 29.6%
• October 26.6% 
• November 23.1%
• December 22.3%

Staff have requested a waiver of the administrative cost limitation from Office of Head Start for 
this budget period. 

148



Prepared 01/12/2016

START-UP FUNDS
BUDGET

ACTUAL 
(4/1/15-

6/30/15)2

ACTUAL 
(7/1/15 and 

after)
REMAINING % SPENT % 

REMAINING

PERSONNEL 32,460 17,255 26,506 (11,302) 135% -35%
FRINGE BENEFITS 9,740 4,604 5,502 (366) 104% -4%
TRAVEL 14,400 13,752 30,335 (29,687) 306% -206%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 145,100 2,925 111,737 30,438 79% 21%
CONTRACTUAL 0 0 0 0
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0 0
OTHER 285,300 10,038 142,873 132,388 54% 46%
COST POOLS 0 1,464 0 (1,464)
TOTAL 487,000 50,038 316,953 120,008 75% 25%

BASE FUNDS
PERSONNEL 1,589,705 1,019,088 570,617 64% 36%
FRINGE BENEFITS 509,459 237,709 271,750 47% 53%
TRAVEL 8,645 25,946 (17,301) 300% -200%
EQUIPMENT 0 0 0
SUPPLIES 149,393 212,213 (62,820) 142% -42%
CONTRACTUAL 26,542 2,065 24,476 8% 92%
CONSTRUCTION 0 0 0
OTHER 514,397 185,893 328,504 36% 64%
COST POOLS 64,860 112,478 (47,618) 173% -73%
TOTAL 2,863,000 1,795,392 1,067,608 63% 37%

TRAINING & TECHNICAL ASSISTANCE FUNDS
TRAVEL 10,489 4,061 6,428 39% 61%
SUPPLIES 9,158 0 9,158 0% 100%
CONTRACTUAL 9,507 0 9,507 0% 100%
OTHER 18,619 14,672 3,946 79% 21%
TOTAL 47,773 18,734 29,040 39% 61%

GRAND TOTAL EHS FEDERAL FUNDS 3,397,773 50,038 2,131,079 1,216,656 64% 36%

NON-FEDERAL SHARE BUDGET ACTUAL REMAINING % SPENT % 
REMAINING

IN-KIND 727,693 0 727,693 0% 100%

TOTAL NON-FEDERAL FUNDS 727,693 0 727,693 0% 100%

Centralized Administrative Cost 5.2%
Program Administrative Cost 17.1%

Total Administrative Cost 22.3%

Budget reflects Notice of Award #09CH010071-01-00.
1 Initial budget period is 7/1/2015 - 1/31/2016 (prorated to 7 months).  Subsequent budget period will be 2/1/2016 - 1/31/2017.
2 Pre-award costs (within start-up funds) obligated between 04/01/2015 - 06/30/2015 are not to exceed $75,000.
Actual expenditures include open purchase orders, unliquidated travel, and estimated pending expenditures accrued through 12/31/15.

Community Action Partnership of Kern
Early Head Start - San Joaquin County

Budget to Actual Report

Budget Period:  July 1, 2015 - January 31, 20161

Report Period:  July 1, 2015 - December 31, 2015
Month 6 of 7 (86%)

Pre-Award Budget Period:  April 1, 2015 - June 30, 20152

149



150



151



152



153



 

 
To: Board of Directors 

From:  Jairon Castillo, Policy Council Chairperson 

Date:  January 27, 2016 

Subject: Agenda Item VIII(a): Head Start Policy Council Report – Action Item 

 

  
   
The Policy Council met on December 17, 2015 and quorum was established.  The 
Policy Council elected subcommittee members to the Planning, Budget & Finance, and 
Bylaws Subcommittees. 
 
We approved the following; carry-over unexpended San Joaquin County EHS Funding 
to the 2016-2017 budget period, waiver of Non-Federal Share and Administrative cost 
limitations for San Joaquin County Early Head Start, and renewal of the San Joaquin 
County EHS Food Service Vendor Contract for program year 2016-2017.  
 
Two Policy Council members shared their experiences while attending the Head Start 
National Conference in San Diego.  Jason Warren, PC member and parent from Cleo 
Foran HS shared he learned of the impact male involvement has on their children’s 
early education and beyond.  Janeth Rivera, PC member and parent from Pacific HS 
become more familiar with how Head Start changes the lives of families through 
referrals to education and career services for parents.   
 
Yolanda thanked everyone for their attendance.  She added that November was a busy 
month with several days of staff training to update them on policies and procedures.  
She also announced that we were fully enrolled for the month of December and thanked 
everyone for letting others know about our program.  Yolanda stated that the Wasco 
State Prison “adopted” our Sunrise Villa and Wasco Child Development centers and all 
the children received gifts for the Holiday season. Yolanda thanked Board of Directors’ 
Representative, Ana Vigil, for her passion and commitment to our program.  In closing, 
Yolanda wished everyone a safe and happy holiday.  
 
 

 Next Policy Council Meeting will be held  
Thursday, January 28th, 2016 in the Board Room 

5005 Business Park North, Suite 130  
Bakersfield, CA 93309 

5:30pm – 7:00pm 
 

154



COMMUNITY ACTION PARTNERSHIP OF KERN 
HEAD START / STATE CHILD DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS  

POLICY COUNCIL (PC) MEETING MINUTES 
DECEMBER 17, 2015 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – Chairperson, Jairon Castillo called the meeting to order at 5:31 p.m.  
a. Moment of Silence, Pledge of Allegiance 
b. Reading of Promise of Community Action 
“Community Action changes people’s lives, embodies the spirit of hope, improves communities,  
 and makes America a better place to live.  We care about the entire community and are dedicated to 
helping people help themselves and each other.”  

2.  ROLL CALL/SET QUORUM – Secretary - Quorum was established. 
PC Members Present: Christine Hernandez, Janeth Rivera, Gabriella McCutcheon, Christina Bates, Jalisa 
Cockrell, Sonja Segoviano, Jairon Castillo, Cindy Granados, Caterina Cerda, Deborah Martinez, Ana Vigil, 
Josenn Vergara, Mary Reynolds 
Others Present: Priscilla Hicks, Family Education Coordinator; Pamala Roberts, Family Education 
Coordinator; Lisa Price, PDM Administrative Assistant; Myra Zamora Family Service Worker; Argelia Diaz, 
Family Services & Governance Program Assistant; Yolanda Gonzales, Director Head Start/State Child 
Development;  Malika McGee, Human Resources Specialist (San Joaquin County);  Maura Sandoval, 
Staffing Specialist; Michael Lackman, Human Resources Manager; Donna Holland, Fiscal Manager; Mary 
Ann Mooney, Program Manager; LeTisha Brooks, Program Manager; Krissie Leach, Program Manager; 
Pam Pritchard, Assistant Director Head Start/State Child Development; Dolores Barrita, Guest; Daniel 
Lewis, Guest 

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA – Chairperson, Jairon Castillo (*ACTION)  
a. Approval of the PC agenda dated December 17, 2015 with corrections to communication items (a) – 
(g) for end dates to be noted as November 30, 2015 was made by Jason Warren; seconded by Sonja 
Segoviano.  Motion carried unanimously. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES – Chairperson, Jairon Castillo (*ACTION) 
a. Approval of the PC meeting minutes dated November 10, 2015 was made by Caterina Cerda; 
seconded by Christine Hernandez.  Motion carried unanimously.  

5. PRESENTATION OF GUESTS/PUBLIC FORUM  
(The public wishing to address the full Policy Council may do so at this time.  Policy Council members may 
respond briefly to statements made or questions posed.  However, the PC will take no action other than 
referring the item(s) to staff for study and analysis. Speakers are limited to five minutes each.  If more 
than one person wishes to address the same topic, total group time for topic will be 10 minutes.  Please 
state your name before making your presentation.  Thank you. 
a. None 

6. STANDING COMMITTEE REPORT (3 minutes each)     
a. Personnel Committee- The committee convened; however quorum was not established.  Jason 
Warren shared on behalf of the Chairperson who was not present. Mr. Warren stated Maura, Personnel 
Staff Sponsor, provided a brief overview of the Employee handbook and informed members who were 
present how they will break the handbook down piece by piece.  This will help Personnel members 
become more familiar with the hiring process for Head Start and become more familiar with the 
requirements of staff who hold a position with Head start. 
b. Planning Committee  
c. Finance Committee 
d. By-Laws Committee 

155



 

 

7. HUMAN RESOURCES REPORT – Maura Sandoval, Staffing Specialist (*ACTION)  
  a. Human Resources Report December 2015 
 Maura distributed the HR report for review.  She stated that most candidates indicated on the list have 

already been hired without parent review as parents were unavailable to review (all) applications.  
Motion was made by Christine Hernandez, seconded by Gabriela McCutcheon to approve the Human 
Resources Report as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.   

 b. Executive Session – Mike Lackman, Human Resources Manager 
None 

 
8. PRESENTATIONS  

a. National Head Start Association Conference, Jason Warren, PC Member (3 minutes)  
Jason stated he was thankful for the opportunity to attend this conference.  He added that he would like 
to focus on male involvement and has been thinking about ways to plan monthly events at his center as 
a way to encourage other males to be involved. Mr. Warren stated he is thankful for this opportunity 
and he gained new knowledge on the importance of male involvement.  He looks forward to 
encouraging other Head Start dads to be a part of the program as well. 
b. National Head Start Association Conference, Ana Luna, PC Member (3 minutes) 
PC Member not in attendance. 
c. National Head Start Association Conference, Janeth Rivera, PC Member (3 minutes)  
Janeth shared that she learned many ways in which the organization helps parents to gain employment, 
and about the resources it provides.  Janeth concluded that Head Start helps parents and the 
community as well. 

9. NEW BUSINESS – Chairperson (*ACTION)  
a. Request to carry-over unexpended San Joaquin County EHS Funding to the 2016-2017 Budget 
Period – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start/State Child Development  
Yolanda shared we are in our first year of obtaining the San Joaquin Grant and are up and running.  We 
are also working on identifying and acquiring additional facilities.  She added that all of our facilities (in 
San Joaquin County) could not be open due to needed repairs.  At this time a request for approval is 
sought to allow carry over funds to the 2016-2017 budget year for but not limited to needed repairs, 
work on playgrounds, purchase of classroom furniture, etc.  Jason Warren made a motion to approve 
the carryover of unexpended funds; seconded by Jalisa Cockrell.  Motion carried unanimously.  
b. Request for waiver of Non-Federal Share and Administrative Cost Limitations for San Joaquin 
County Early Head Start – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start/State Child Development 
Yolanda explained that because of delays in the opening of our program (SJ County) a waiver for non-
federal shares (in-kind) was being sought until facilities are up and running to allow the ability to 
generate in kind.  Motion made by Caterina Cerda; seconded by Cindy Granados.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
c. Request to approve the San Joaquin County EHS Food Service Vendor Contract for Contract Year 
2016-2017 – Yolanda Gonzales, Director of Head Start/State Child Development 
At this time Jerry Meade, PDM Administrator shared with the group that a short term contract was 
negotiated when initially opening services in San Joaquin County.  He went on to share that at this 
juncture we are looking to initiate a new contract with the same vendor for the new program year.  The 
cost exceeds the allowable $200, 000 staff approval limit and therefore must be approved by governing 
bodies.  The vended amount is $272,400 and will be provided by one vendor for all 4 facilities.  A 
question was posed as to the dollar amount specifically if all the centers are not opened then are vendor 
meals in that dollar amount needed?  The response was yes as that quote is a projected amount for 
February 2016 – January 2017. Motion was made by Gabriela McCutcheon; seconded by Josenn 
Vergara.  Motion was carried unanimously.    

156



d. Nomination and election of 2015 – 2016 By-Laws Committee (5 openings) 
Janelle reiterated to the group that as a member of PC it is a requirement to participate on a minimum 
of one subcommittee.  At this time she gave a brief overview of the Bylaws Committee for which she is 
the staff sponsor.  Motion was made by Janeth Rivera to elect Jalisa Cockrell, Sonja Segoviano, Cindy 
Granados and Ashley Womack (not in attendance) to the of 2015-2016 Policy Council Bylaws 
Committee.  Motion seconded by Caterina Cerda; and carried unanimously.  
e. Nomination and election of 2015 – 2016 Budget & Finance Committee (6 openings) 
Donna Holland staff sponsor of the PC Budget & Finance Committee gave a brief overview of what the 
Committee is.  She shared that the committee reviews financial reports, parent activity fund reports, 
nonfederal share and in-kind reports, and any other documents pertaining to budget and finance 
aspects of the program.  Motion was made by Mary Robinson to elect Gabriela McCutcheon, Christina 
Bates, Christine Hernandez and Mary Robinson to the 2015-2016 Policy Council Budget & Finance 
Committee; seconded by Christina Bates.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
f. Nomination and election of 2015 – 2016 Planning Committee Members (6 openings) 
Jerry gave a brief overview of the Planning Committee.  This group follows the planning calendar for the 
year; reviews and sections of the refunding application, various agency plans, e.g. Recruitment & 
Selection, T & T.A. among other pertinent planning documents.  Jerry shared the first meeting will be 
held on January 5, 2016 at 5:30 p.m. and provided a draft calendar.   He added that the committee 
ultimately decides the time and day of meetings in conjunction with what works best for their 
schedules.   Jason Warren, Caterina Cerda and Deborah Martinez were elected to the 2015-2016 Policy 
Council Planning Committee with a motion made by Gabriela McCutcheon; seconded by Janeth Rivera.  
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

10. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Information concerning the Consent item(s) listed below has been forwarded to each Policy Council 
Member for study prior to this meeting.  Unless a PC member, or member of the public, has question 
concerning a particular item and asks that it may be withdrawn from the Consent Calendar; the items 
are approved at one time by the full Policy Council.  If there are any PC members, or members of the 
public, wishing to remove any item from the Consent Calendar, please indicate at this time. 
a. None 

11. COMMUNICATIONS – Chairperson 
a) *Head Start & Early Head Start Budget vs. Actual Expenditures (including Non Federal & In-Kind), for 

HS/EHS Kern, EHS San Joaquin and EHS Child Care Partnerships March 1, 2015 through November 30, 
2015   

b) *Parent Local Travel & Child Care March 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015 (English/Spanish)  
c) *Parent Out-of-County Travel, March 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015 (English/Spanish)  
d) *Parent Activity Funds, March 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015 (English and Spanish) 
e) *Parent Meals, March 1, 2015 through November 30, 2015 (English/Spanish) 
f) *Child and Adult Care Food Program/Central Kitchen Report, November2015 
g) *Enrollment and Average Daily Attendance Report for HS/EHS Kern, EHS San Joaquin and EHS Child Care 

Partnerships, November 2015  
h) Murray Christmas on the Farm every Saturday and Sunday for the month of December  
i) Policy Council Executive Officer Roles & Responsibilities (English/Spanish) 
j) Policy Council Functions of the Personnel Committee (English/Spanish) 

*Items (a) – (g) will be distributed at the meeting 
Motion was made by Caterina Cerda to receive and file communication items (a) – (j). 
 

12. POLICY COUNCIL REPORT/Training – Janelle Gonzalez, Program Governance Coordinator 
At this time Janelle distributed certificates of participation and commemorative photos to those who 
participated in the 2015 Heart Walk and the National Head Start Conference thanking them for their 

157



attendance and time dedicated to the program.  She also encouraged parents to attend as many 
(additional) meetings and to share new learning experiences with their respective centers.  At this time 
Jason and Deborah both expressed thanks for the opportunity they had to recently attend the 
Recruitment & Selection Committee Meeting.   Ms. Gonzalez encouraged the PC members to inform 
her of any clarification or training they would like to receive in regards to the monthly reports they 
receive on a monthly basis.  She expressed her gratitude for each members’ attendance and encouraged 
them to continue with their attendance to gain more knowledge of the Head Start program.   

13. COMMUNITY REPRESENATIVE REPORT  
None given as this position is currently vacant. 

14. POLICY COUNCIL CHAIRPERSON REPORT –Jairon Castillo 
               No report.  However at this time Jairon thanked the committee for attending and being on time so that 

the meeting may start as scheduled. 

15. BOARD OF DIRECTORS REPRESENTATIVE REPORT – Ana Vigil 
No report to share as the Board of Directors did not meet. 

16. DIRECTORS REPORT (HEAD START/STATE CHILD DEVELOPMENT) – Yolanda Gonzales 
Yolanda thanked everyone for their attendance.  She added that November was a busy month with 
several days of staff training held regarding updates on policies and procedures.  She also announced 
that we were fully enrolled for the month of December and thanked everyone for sharing and letting 
others know about our program.  Yolanda stated that the Wasco State Prison “adopted” our Sunrise 
Villa and Wasco Child Development centers and all the children received gifts.  She noted that other 
centers were also the recipients of similar generosities.  Yolanda thanked Board of Directors 
Representative Ana Vigil for her passion and commitment to our program.  She also shared that Staff 
Development took place today and tomorrow is the last day for part year centers as they will close for 
two weeks.  In closing, Yolanda wished everyone safe and happy holidays.  

17. ANNOUNCEMENTS – Chairperson 
Janelle stated that although there were several pieces of information handed out this afternoon, such as 
fiscal documents, enrollment information, etc. these reports are typically included in members’ PC 
Packets.  However, due to time constraints with the Holiday break, it was unable to occur in that manner 
for this meeting.  In closing, Janelle reminded the group that the next meeting will be held on Thursday 
January 28, 2016 with a light dinner provided at 5:00 p.m. and the meeting to begin at 5:30 p.m. 

18. ADJOURNMENT – Chairperson  
Motion was made by Josenn Vergara to adjourn the meeting at 6:28 p.m. 
 

Lisa Price/PDM Administrative Assistant 
Completed 1.06.16 

158



159



160



161



162


	Executive Report - Whole Report.pdf
	BTA Reports_Executive Committee.pdf
	Executive Summary for Exec Comm_Kern_November 2015.pdf
	BTA Report_Kern_November 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Executive Summary for Exec Comm_EHS CCP_November 2015.pdf
	BTA Report_EHS CCP_November 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Executive Summary for Exec Comm_San Joaquin_November 2015.pdf
	BTA Report_San Joaquin_November 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT



	B&F Report - Whole Report.pdf
	BTA for B&F_December 2015.pdf
	Executive Summary for B&F_Kern_December 2015.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_Kern_December 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Copy of Accrual Report 2015-2016 for BOD_December 2015.pdf
	YTD Accrual Report

	Executive Summary for B&F_EHS CCP_December 2015.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_EHS CCP_December 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT

	Executive Summary for B&F_San Joaquin_December 2015.pdf
	BTA WORKBOOK_SAN JOAQUIN_December 2015.pdf
	BTA REPORT






